
 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
3. ROLL CALL 

4. PRESENTATION 

A. Volunteers of the Year-Missy and Dave Foran 
B. Pancake Breakfast Check Presentation 

C. Introduction of New Police Officer-Jordan Tuttle 

 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 
7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Communications 

B. Minutes 

(1) October 21, 2025 Regular Township Board Meeting 

(2) October 21, 2025 Township Board Meeting Closed Session 

C. Bills 
D. 2026 Board Meeting Schedule 

E. Treasurer’s Quarterly Report 
F. Brightline IT - Hewlett Packard Enterprise Care Contract Renewal 
G. Brightline IT – Palo Alto Care Contract Renewal 

H. Brightline IT - QuickHelp & Keeper Contract Renewal 

I. GoTo Technologies USA Contract Update 

J. Placement of Delinquent Special Assessments, Delinquent Utilities, 

Delinquent False Alarms, Unpaid Lot Mowing/Code Violations and Misc. Fees 
on the Winter Tax Roll for 2025 

 
10. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Special Use Permit #25-21 – St. Martha’s Parish and School – 1100 West Grand River – Addition 
to a building over 25,000 feet 

B. Special Use Permit #25-20 – Fedewa Holdings – 4601 Dobie Road – Construct a series of 
buildings larger than 25,000 feet 

C. 3rd Quarter Budget Amendments 
D. Public Act 152 Annual Healthcare Exemption Option 

 
11. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Township Manager Review Process 
 

12. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

13. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 

All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained from the Supervisor. Appointment of Supervisor Pro 
Tem and/ or Temporary Clerk if necessary. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board 
by contacting: Township Manager Tim Dempsey, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required. 

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD – REGULAR MEETING 

November 6, 2025 6:00 PM 



9.A

CONSENT AGENDA  
BOARD 

COMMUNICATIONS 



From:
To:
Subject: RE: Request to Continue Public Hearing on CPE Development
Date: Friday, October 17, 2025 4:16:31 PM

Mrs. Grace,
 
At this point, the Planning Commission will take this matter back up at their meeting on the 27th of
October. They have the opportunity to either make a recommendation to the Township Board or seek
additional information from Staff or the applicant. After they make a recommendation to the
Township Board, there will be at least one meeting of discussion, prior to the Board making any
decision on the matter.
 
I will make sure that the Planning Commission receives a copy of your email in their next packet.
Please let me know if you need anything else.
 
Sincerely,
 
 
Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP
Director of Community Planning and Development

W 
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us
 
From: ps grace <  
Sent: Thursday, October 16, 2025 5:01 PM
To: Board <  Tim Schmitt < ; Scott Hendrickson

>
Subject: Request to Continue Public Hearing on CPE Development

 

Dear Township Board and Planning Commission,

I am writing to formally request that the Planning Commission continue the hearing process for the

Authentix Okemos project and require additional analysis before any decisions are made. This request is

based on several concerns related to the current scope and reliability of the traffic study, as well as the

need for greater transparency and public participation.

1. Incomplete Scope and Questionable Reliability of Current Traffic Report

The traffic analysis conducted by the developer’s consultant considered only vehicle movements, failing

to account for other important modes of transportation such as pedestrians, cyclists, transit riders,

micromobility users (including e-scooters, strollers, and wheelchairs), and school-related foot traffic.

Because these everyday travel modes were omitted, we do not have confidence in the reliability of the

report. Therefore, we urge the Commission to retain an independent firm to conduct a new multimodal



traffic study or a peer review, with all costs to be borne by the developer.

2. Anticipated Vehicle Surges and Increased Congestion on Central Park Drive

Even according to the consultant’s own figures, the increase in vehicle trips from the proposed

development will place significant strain on the already congested segment of Central Park Drive between

Grand River Avenue and Times Square. This is expected to result in longer queues, increased delays,

and a higher risk of crashes.

3. Safety and Access Concerns at Belvedere and Columbus/Central Park

Currently, left turn waits from Columbus Avenue to Central Park Drive are already very long. The addition

of nearly 600 more residents, including seniors and children living on both sides of Belvedere, will mean

many more people crossing daily for activities such as visiting the CPE pool and gym or shopping at

Walmart. This increased pedestrian and vehicle activity is likely to create a bottleneck at the Belvedere

exit, disrupt daily routines for CPE residents, and raise safety risks for both CPE and Authentix Okemos

residents.

4. Proposed Solutions Remain Speculative Without a Comprehensive Study

While some potential mitigation measures were discussed at the last Commission meeting, it is unclear

whether any of these ideas will sufficiently address the identified traffic and safety issues. We therefore

request a new or updated report that considers all forms of traffic and rigorously evaluates specific, data-

supported solutions before further consideration of the project.

5. Need for Transparency and Public Participation

To ensure public trust and meaningful engagement, we request that the new or updated traffic report be

submitted well in advance of the next meeting and posted for public review and written comment.

Additionally, we request that another public hearing be held after the report’s release so that both the

community and Commissioners have the opportunity to ask questions of the independent analyst.

Requested Actions

·       Continue the hearing to a future date.

·       Direct staff to retain an independent multimodal traffic study or peer review—funded by the developer

—that includes analysis of vehicles, pedestrians, bicycles, transit, micromobility, and access for seniors,

children, and persons with disabilities.

·       Require the study to include:

o   Existing counts

o   Peak-hour pedestrian and bicycle counts

o   School, day-camp, and retail trip patterns

o   Queueing and delay analysis at Belvedere/Columbus/Central Park and Grand River

approaches

o   Conflict analysis for crossings



o   Mitigation options with level-of-service and safety outcomes

Publish the report at least 14 days before the continued hearing and accept public comments; then hold a

new public hearing to review findings and proposed mitigations.

We appreciate your careful consideration of community safety and access. Please include this letter in

the public record for the Authentix Okemos Project.

I ask that you please ensure that each member of the Township Planning Commission receives a copy of

this letter. Thank you for your consideration.

Paulette Grace

 



















From:
To:
Subject: 1 of 2 Memo Re: SUP #25020 - Fedewa (Dobie Road), SUP #25021 – St. Martha Parish, and Ordinance 2025-03

(Rezone vacant Dobie Road)
Date: Tuesday, October 21, 2025 10:25:58 AM
Attachments: 1 of 2 Memo Re SUP #25020 - Fedewa (Dobie Road), SUP #25021 – St. Martha Parish, and Ordinance 2025-03

(Rezone vacant Dobie Road).PDF

Some people who received this message don't often get email from john@leonelawassociates.com. Learn why this
is important

Dear Township Board:

[I am resending this in two parts because of its size one or all of you may not
have received it when sent as one whole attachment.] 

Please consider the Planning Commission's and this Board's history of
decisions outlined in the attached memo regarding the January-March 2025
grand reversal by the Planning Commission and this Board of the
previous October 2019 through July 2024 multiple-years denials of the
rezoning that are the bases for the above matters.  

- John Leone

LEONE LAW ASSOCIATES PLLC

John Fordell Leone

T: 517-701-2000

4544 Dobie Road  

Okemos, Michigan 48864

NOTICE: This electronic mail transmission and any attachment is confidential and may constitute an attorney-client
communication that is privileged by law. It is not intended for transmission to, or receipt by, any unauthorized persons. If you have
received this electronic mail transmission in error please delete it from your system without copying it and notify the sender by
reply e-mail or by calling LEONE LAW ASSOCIATES PLLC at (517) 701-2000, so that our address record can be corrected. Thank
you. 



































































































































From:
To:
Subject: Township property taxes-new developments
Date: Tuesday, October 21, 2025 12:23:13 PM

Dear Board:

From reading letters to the Board, submitted by Township residents, and from
attending recent Listening Sessions, I have noticed several consistent concerns that
have been raised.  

1).  Township residents are worried about the steady increase in property taxes in
Meridian township

2).  Traffic is out of control in Meridian Township

3).  The Township is overdeveloped, and residents feel that the Planning
Commission and Board are not listening to their concerns

According to the Urban Institute, new construction may bring a short term boost to
the tax base of a municipality, however, the resulting increased demand these new
residents place on municipal services, and infrastructure, will eventually result in
higher taxes for existing residents. This is precisely what I have witnessed as a long
term Meridian Township resident.  The Planning Commission, and Board without
fail, approve each and every new proposed development, (with a few outliers), that
comes before them.  The Townships own documents mention, “there was
substantial resident input AGAINST the project”.  So my question is,  "who does
the Planning Commission and the Board work for, Township residents or the out of
town developers”? 

Please prove me wrong, and vote against the Eyde development on Central Park,
and the Fedewa development on Dobie Rd.  Both of these development have raised
“substantial resident input against the project”.  Will our Township
representatives once again go against the wishes of their (taxpaying)
constituents?

Sincerely,

Charles Kotz



From:
To:
Subject: Authentix Okemos (AO) Compromise Plan
Date: Wednesday, October 22, 2025 5:03:56 PM

COUNTER-PROPOSAL: Remove Buildings 4, 5, and 6 (each two floors high) from the land
area adjacent to Central Park Estates (CPE). Move three of those floors to the Walmart side of
the development  (between Belvedere and Walmart) by adding one foundation to that location.
The other three floors can be added to buildings 1, 2, and 7. This plan will reduce the total
number of apartment buildings from 11 to 9 and establish a desired buffer zone between AO
and CPE.

If there is inadequate space for an additional foundation on the Walmart side, two of the three
buildings referenced for removal above can be removed by adding a third floor to buildings 1,
2, 3, 7. These third floors need not be an eyesore to CPE residents for two reasons: trees and
distance. The forest of the Spring Peeper Drain Easement, along Belvedere, will remain
undisturbed and features apprx 80 foot trees that will tower above all AO structures. Similarly,
per the AO Site Plan, along Columbus a natural forest feature signified as "Wetland" will
remain between CPE and Building 6 of AO. In the middle area of the block, where buildings 4
and 5 would have stood, a grove of trees should be planted which will provide a privacy and
sound barrier for CPE, as well as preserving the natural features the full length of Belvedere
and for 3/4 the length of Nassau St. If only two buildings are to be removed from the Nassau
side, removing 4 and 5 will serve to make the AO complex the most inconspicuous.

Once a compromise plan is negotiated between the Township and Continental, the residents
of CPE should be polled to see if the compromise isis preferred over the original plan or if
residents have reasonable third options to offer. Naturally, CPE residents will want a
contractual commitment that no additional units will be added to the development and that the
newly established buffer zone will remain permanently free of further development. Perhaps
that section could be donated or sold at a reasonable price to the township to create a small
natural area named "Continental Natural Sanctuary." 

A WIN FOR CPE: Traffic problems will be reduced as three floors of
population/traffic/units/noise could be removed from the CPE side. Moreover, the concern
over traffic congestion on Central Park Drive will be reduced somewhat by the fact that traffic
on the Walmart side can funnel in and out of the area by way of Madison Ave eastbound and
Times Square Drive westbound without ever needing to enter Central Park Drive.

In addition, CPE will gain a wider buffer zone between our single family homes and the
apartments. This will help preserve the natural character that has drawn residents to Okemos
and preserve the natural habitat for our cherished year-round population of deer, wild turkey,
vultures, and a multitude of smaller species. 

Removing two or three buildings from close proximity to CPE will significantly reduce the
concrete and asphalt footprint, allowing more of the natural drainage and thereby reducing for
CPE residents the impact of altered drainage patterns.

A WIN FOR CONTINENTAL: AO will retain all 312 units while saving substantial
construction costs by eliminating 2 foundations (the expensive part of building). AO residents
will also enjoy the enhanced natural space. This good faith effort on the part of Continental



will express their stated desire to be good neighbors and thereby earn them a greater measure
of trust and appreciation.

A WIN FOR MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP: The township will still gain the full tax revenue from
the addition of AO.

Historically, the Board of Trustees and the township have welcomed such compromise plans.
It should be noted, however, that this compromise is a contingency plan to be used as a back-
up plan. The primary goal of CPE residents has been to prevent the AO development
altogether. Toward that end, the CPE community has presented to the township a petition with
115 signatures which opposes AO. If AO is nevertheless built, this Compromise Plan should
be utilized to reduce the impact of the AO development upon the lives of CPE residents. This
compromise is not intended to preclude any other legal options that individuals of CPE or the
community as a whole wish to explore (such as a gated community).



From:
To:
Subject: context compromise plan
Date: Wednesday, October 22, 2025 8:32:16 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Dear Board,

I provide the following excerpt from the email string in order to show the context of the conversation with

Continental. This excerpt shows  that the intent of the discussion/plan has been to remove Continental

buildings 4 and 5 (reducing the total number of Authentix buildings from 11 to 9). As Continental's email

of 10/25/2025 shows, if they can in addition build another foundation on the Walmart side, they will be

able to eliminate buildings 4,5, AND 6 and thereby reduce the total number of buildings from 11 to 8 and

create the widest possible buffer zone/nature sanctuary. Later today I will send a more fleshed-out

version of the compromise plan. One important aspect of it: If Continental can transfer one

foundation from the CPE side to the Walmart side this will allow access for entry/exit onto Madison Ave

and Times Square Drive for the additional three floors of Authentix units moved to the Walmart side.

Allowing them to totally bypass the congestion of CP Drive. Thus, the residents of the Walmart side will

have three routes in and out, which will remove significant traffic flow from CP Drive. Keeping in mind that

all Central Park Estates traffic must enter/exit from/to CP Drive and the safety issue that comes with

added congestion on CP Drive is of major concern to CPE residents. 

Please keep in mind that this compromise plan is a contingency Plan B (with the primary and foremost

goal of the CPE residents being to prevent the Authentix Okemos project altogether). This compromise

plan is intended to minimize the negative impact (or worst case scenario) of the development if indeed it

is approved by the township.

Hi Vincent,

 

Thank you again for your thoughtful suggestions.

 

Since Continental does not build 4-story buildings, we won’t be able to propose moving forward with the

exceptions described below. However, we will look at the alternative you suggested last Wednesday, and

see if we can add a foundation to the Walmart side of the development alongside adding a 3rd story to

buildings 1, 2, and 7. This will be challenging as space on the Walmart-side is very tight given the setback

and parking requirements, but we will review.

 

Thank you,

Brett



 

Brett Mozzetti, PLA

Development Director

e: bmozzetti@cproperties.com | p: 262-278-9353

 

From: Vincent Tomanica 
Sent: Friday, October 17, 2025 5:51 AM
To: Brett Mozzetti 
Subject: Fwd: Meridian township building code for multi-family

 

Hi Brett,

 

Please find below the MeridianTownship building code section that seems to address your
concern about how high they will allow a building to be. If indeed these exceptions apply to
you, then this section might allow for a fourth floor on buildings 8,9,10,11 (thereby allowing
removal of buildings 4 and 5 from the Central Park Estates side and creating a buffer zone
between Central Park Estates and Authentix Okemos). And saving Continental a lot of money
that would have gone into building two foundations. 

 

guild
Highlight



From:
To:
Subject: continued compromise plan
Date: Wednesday, October 22, 2025 7:44:16 AM

Dear Board of Trustees,

The significance of the email from Continental Properties, which I just forwarded to you: 
 even if Continental is unable to build a fifth foundation on the Walmart side of the
development, per their email they seem to approve a third floor on buildings on the Central
Park Estates side, thereby making it possible to eliminate buildings 4 and 5 and thereby create
the desired buffer zone while adding no additional units.



guild
Highlight







From:
To: f
Cc:
Subject: RE: Real Traffic control needed for Van Atta Rd
Date: Friday, October 24, 2025 12:52:32 PM

Hi Tim,
 
The Ingham County Road Department is not going to permit a temporary traffic light at the Van Atta
Rd intersection as it is not the posted detour route. They will argue correctly that a temporary traffic
light would infer that the motoring public should be at this intersection, when they should not be.
 
The Township has already reached an agreement with MDOT that they shall:
 

1.       Install barricades and road closed to thru traffic signs on N Van Atta Rd at Grand River Ave,
on Newman Rd at Van Atta Rd, and on Newman Rd at N Meridian Rd.

2.       Get the N Meridian Rd detour signs boarded up. Essentially, MDOT currently has two
detours posted right now. The normal bridge closed detour, which directs traffic to N
Meridian Rd, and the Okemos Rd detour due to the current 35-day closure of the N Meridian
Rd intersection.

 
As we explained at the recent listening session, the County is not very responsive to the Township
and we can only push so hard before we actually make matters worse for all involved. Please
consider that this may be in part due to the fact that County leaders and the Board of
Commissioners do not hear directly from our residents. If the public would communicate with the
County Depts and the County Board of Commissioners, when the issue are germane to the County’s
authority, things may improve.
 
Please let us know if you have any questions.
 
Sincerely,
 
Dan Opsommer
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works & Engineering

Work: 517.853.4440 | Fax: 517.853.4099
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
 
From: Tim Potter < > 
Sent: Friday, October 24, 2025 12:23 PM
To: Dan Opsommer < >
Cc: Board < us>
Subject: Re: Real Traffic control needed for Van Atta Rd
 
Dan,



 
Thank you for explaining all of that.  I realize that the Twp. doesn't have control over such
things, but I believe it does have some influence over things thru representation with the
county and MDOT.
I'm simply asking that the Twp. push the road agencies involved to consider using a temporary
traffic signal at the Van Atta Rd. intersection much like ones offered by this company for sale
or rent:

https://www.streetsmartrental.com/equipment/portable-traffic-signals/
 
I've seen these used elsewhere in our region at other construction sites, so they must be
authorized for use in Michigan for such occasions.
It would certainly help make the Van Atta Rd/ M-43 intersection much safer during rush hour
traffic periods.
 
Thanks for the consideration.
Tim Potter
 
*************************

 
 
On Fri, Oct 24, 2025 at 10:56 AM Dan Opsommer < > wrote:

Hi Tim,

Thank you for your email. The Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) is the
governmental entity that reviews and approves all road detours. Every detour has a traffic
control plan that the ICRD approves. The governing body that provides oversight to the
ICRD is the Ingham County Board of Commissioners. 

The Township is working to get MDOT to improve their traffic control plan, but the
Township does not have permitting authority to impose any change. We can only provide
recommendations.

The Township has a speed display trailer on N Van Atta Rd. We have, and will continue to,
devoted additional police presence to the greatest extent possible. I personally witnessed an
officer on N Van Atta Rd this morning at Ted Black Woods. 

Very similar issues persisted throughout the closure of the S Meridian Rd intersection
earlier this fall as there is no way to compel motorists to use a posted detour. Signage and a
police presence can help, but there is no way to compel compliance. 

Please understand that part of the reality of keeping the eastern third of Meridian Township
rural is that we only have one north/south County primary road. Therefore, when that lone
county primary road is closed in the eastern third, the detour will always be this challenging
as the nearest primary roads to use for the detour are Dobie Rd, Marsh Rd, and Okemos Rd. 

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,





From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: Please cut tree limbs !!
Date: Tuesday, October 28, 2025 3:59:17 PM
Attachments: Okemos Rd RRFB Crosswalk South of Gaylord C Smith Ct.png

Hi Ethel,
 
The Police Dept did forward your email to me yesterday. I have asked the Ingham County Road
Department to trim and open up the attached sight lines the next time they are mobilizing to trim
trees in the Township.
 
Please let us know if you have any questions.
 
Sincerely,
 
Dan Opsommer
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works & Engineering

Work: 517.853.4440 | Fax: 517.853.4099
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
 

From: Scott Hendrickson < > 
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2025 3:15 PM
To: Ethel anthony <  Board <
Cc: Dan Opsommer 
Subject: Re: Please cut tree limbs !!
 
Good Afternoon Ethel, 
 
Thank yo uso much for reaching out to the Board on this important topic. 
 
I suspect the Dan you communicated with is Dan Opsommer, our Deputy Township
Manager. I have cc'd him on this email in case it was someone else. He can assist with
providing any additional information about this matter. 
 
Please do not hesitate to reach out again if there is anything that we can do for you!
 
Sincerely,
 
Scott Hendrickson
Supervisor, Meridian Township







From:
To:
Subject: Questions on CPE proposed development project
Date: Tuesday, October 28, 2025 5:57:58 PM

Thank you for the opportunity to make comments and ask questions at the 10/27/25 Planning

Commission meeting. We would like to provide you with a copy of the questions and ask that you provide

answers to the residents of CPE prior to making your recommendation to the Township Board.

Questions from CPE residents:

1. How does this zoning amendment align with the township’s long-term comprehensive plan?

2. How will the township mitigate the risk of increased traffic congestion and potential safety

hazards?

3. Will developers be required to contribute to infrastructure improvements or traffic mitigation

measures?

4. What are the plans to improve infrastructure (e.g., road widening, traffic signals, pedestrian

crossings) to accommodate the expected increase in vehicles? 

5. How will this increased density affect emergency response times, school bus routes, and

pedestrian safety?

6. How can you assure us that the new development meets safety and environmental standards?

7. If traffic congestion worsens, what recourse will residents have to address the issue?

8. What data or studies support the need for increased density in this area?

9. The current zoning has been in place for over 20 years. Why would the township consider altering

the zoning agreement after previous litigation?

10. Why was Central Park Drive reduced from 4 lanes to 2? Did you account for increasing the density

at CPE when this decision was made?

11. Has a full fiscal impact analysis been conducted? What are the projected net costs or benefits to

the township over 10, 20, and 30 years?

12. What public benefit justifies the rezoning and increased density request?

13. What is the current capacity of the drainage system, and how will it handle increased runoff from

312 new units?

14. How will the drainage design prevent erosion in the nearby area?

15. Will any upgrades to existing stormwater infrastructure be required or planned?

16. Will there be a public impact assessment on how this development could affect existing resident

properties, particularly in terms of drainage or flooding?

17. Who will take responsibility if flooding increases after this development is built?

18. What’s the rationale behind the project with fewer lanes but increased density?

19. The township master plan has talked about the three pillars of sustainability; how would the

planning commission balance these aspects when discussing and considering this project?

Thank you for your time and review of these questions.



From:
To:
Subject: Questions on CPE proposed development project
Date: Tuesday, October 28, 2025 12:19:19 PM

To: Planning Commission, Township Board

It is my understanding that (among many others) the duties of the Planning Commission and the

Township Board are to ensure development projects meet all local and state zoning regulations, that

those projects fit with the master plan for the township, and that the community receives the best

development possible.

The current property owners filed a lawsuit against the township to obtain their desired zoning. This

zoning was what people expected when they purchased their homes in Meridian Township, and it shaped

the anticipated development in the area. Now, two decades later, those owners are seeking another

zoning amendment that would allow for a higher density than ever anticipated, potentially impacting the

surrounding community negatively in a variety of ways. My questions are:

Why would the township want/need to consider such a proposal?

Is the CPE property the only location suitable for this kind of development?

What prevents the existing variance from remaining in effect? Is it because the property hasn't sold under

the current zoning?

Should it be the township's responsibility to help the owner sell the land?

Thank you for your consideration of these questions.

 

Regards,

Paulette Grace



















 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
October 20, 2025 

 
CONTACT: Mike Hamel, Meridian Township Fire Chief 

517.853.4700 | hamel@meridian.mi.us 

The Great Divide Returns to Meridian Township 
Meridian and East Lansing Fire Departments Face Off in Annual Competition 

 
Meridian Township, MI – The Meridian Township Fire Department will compete against the East 
Lansing Fire Department in the annual Great Divide event, taking place Friday, October 24 at Home 
Depot (1749 Newman Road, Okemos). The event will run from 10:00 am to 2:00 pm, with the car-
cutting competition starting at 1:00 pm.   

Each year, this friendly contest challenges both departments to see who can cut a car in half the fastest. 
The event will feature a variety of vendors and a performance by the Williamston High School marching 
band. Free hot dogs and water will also be provided. 

For more information, call the Meridian Township Fire Department at 517.853.4700. 

### 

mailto:hamel@meridian.mi.us


 
 

The community of Meridian Township is in close proximity to the Michigan State Capitol and Michigan State University. The Township 
serves the community through exceptional services, beneficial amenities and an outstanding quality of life. It is a welcoming community 
that celebrates quality education, recreation and lifestyles. 
 
  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
October 27, 2025 

 
CONTACT: Courtney Wisinski, Director of Parks and Recreation 

517.853.4600 | wisinski@meridian.mi.us 

 

New Hours for Meridian Farmers’ Market Starting on Nov. 1  
Winter Hours to Last through April; Market to Move Indoors on Nov. 29 

Meridian Township, MI – The Meridian Township Farmers’ Market is transitioning into its winter 
season, with a shift in hours starting on Saturday, November 1. The updated winter market hours will be 
10:00 am to 2:00 pm, and they will remain in place through April.  

WINTER SCHEDULE DETAILS 

The market will continue to be held OUTDOORS at the Marketplace on the Green Pavilion (1995 Central 
Park Drive, Okemos) on the following Saturdays in November: 

• November 1, 8, 15, 22 

Indoor Market (Starts Nov. 29) 

Beginning Saturday, November 29, the market will move INDOORS to the JCPenney corridor of the 
Meridian Mall (1982 W. Grand River Avenue, Okemos) and will run through April. 

Leading up to Christmas, the market will be held every Saturday. Starting on January 3, 2026, the 
market will be held on the first, third, and fifth Saturdays of each month. 

The indoor market days are as follows: 

• 2025 
o November 29 
o December 6, 13, 20 

• 2026 
o January 3, 17, 31 
o February 7, 21 
o March 7, 21 
o April 4, 18

Experience our largest indoor market yet, with up to 80 vendors offering fresh produce, baked 
goods, prepared foods, unique crafts, gifts, and more.  

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) recipients can use their Michigan Bridge Card at the 
market. SNAP tokens and Double Up Food Bucks will be disbursed and accepted year-round. 

For additional information, please contact Market Manager Tom Cary at 517.712.2395 or email 
farmersmarket@meridian.mi.us. The complete vendor list is located at 
www.meridian.mi.us/FarmersMarket and is updated before each market.  

### 

mailto:wisinski@meridian.mi.us
mailto:farmersmarket@meridian.mi.us
http://www.meridian.mi.us/FarmersMarket




Some people who received this message don't often get email from

3 flags of concrete (estimated 192 SF): $1,694.44
 
Under both situations, the Township would schedule the contractor and complete the work over the next 1-3 weeks. Our
internal staff costs would not be included in the totals listed above. The totals above are simply the cost to remove concrete
($29.77/SY) and pour new concrete ($6.62/SF) under our concrete contract.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Sincerely,
 

Dan Opsommer
Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works & Engineering

Work: 517.853.4440 | Fax: 517.853.4099
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
 

From: Jill Green >
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2025 10:44 AM
To: Dennis Green >; PW < >
Subject: RE: Cracks in Driveway

 

Also note that there are chunks out of two adjacent pads to the one pad which was removed. Those pads be replaced,
not patched or left alone, as the damaged areas will collect water, and also cause a snowblower or shovel to catch,
further eroding the concrete. I believe there are also spider cracks in the approach/gutter and not sure those were
there before equipment was driven over the driveway.
 
Please let us know the plan, and the date for replacement. Thank you.
 
Jill Green
MARTIN COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES
Senior Property Manager

O: (517) 
D: (517) 
M: (517) 7  

J
1111 Michigan Avenue, Suite 300 | East Lansing, MI | 48823

CONNECT WITH US!
Website
LinkedIn

Please consider the environment before printing this email. Martin Commercial Properties, Inc. and Martin Commercial Properties West Michigan, LLC, are independent commercial real estate services providers. This message and any
attachments may be privileged, confidential, or proprietary. If you are not the intended recipient of this email or believe that you have received this correspondence in error, please contact the sender through the information provided
above and permanently delete this message. 

From: Dennis Green >
Sent: Tuesday, October 28, 2025 10:06 AM
To: 
Cc: Jill and Dennis Home >; Jill Green <J >
Subject: Cracks in Driveway

 
DPW Supervisor:
Your crew came out to replace our backflow valve yesterday. (At your discretion, not ours.)



Unfortunately, you have left my driveway with numerous spider cracks on the sections you did not jackhammer out.
Now, several sections of the driveway will require replacement or they will disintegrate in our Michigan Winter.

Here are the pics.
Let us know how and when you intend to remedy this problem.

Thank You,
Dennis and Jill Green

Okemos, MI 48864





9.B

CONSENT AGENDA 
PROPOSED BOARD MINUTES 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of October 21, 2025, and Closed Session of October 
21, 2025

ALTERNATE MOTION: 

Move to approve and ratify the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of October 21, 2025, and Closed Session of October 
21, 2025 with the following amendment(s):[insert 
amendments]

(1)

(1)



Page 1 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
REGULAR MEETING TOWNSHIP BOARD -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.853.4000, Township Hall Room 
TUESDAY, October 21, 2025, 6:00PM 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee 

Sundland, Trustee Trezise, and Trustee Wilson. 
ABSENT: None 

STAFF: Township Manager Dempsey, Township Deputy Manager Opsommer, Community 
Planning and Development Director Schmitt, Police Chief Grillo, Fire Chief Hamel, IT 
Director Gebes, Parks and Recreation Director Wisinski 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson called the October 21, 2025, Regular Township Board meeting to order 
at 6:00 pm. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
Clerk Demas called the roll of the Board.  All Board members present at 6:01 pm. 
 

4. PRESENTATION 
 

None 
 

5. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 6:02 pm. 
 
Kristina Kloc and David Kloc spoke about SUP #25-20, agenda item 11.C 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 6:07 pm. 

 
6.  TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

 
Manager Dempsey gave updates on: 
• Summary from September 30th listening session is posted online. 
• Next listening session is November 13th, 6pm at 2|42 Community Center at 2630 

Bennet Road. 
• Reminder to help keep catch basins clear, concerns can be directed to the County 

Drain Commission 
• Upcoming events: Great Divide on October 24th, Police Department Open House on 

October 25th, Spooktacular on October 30th. 
 



Page 2 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS OF ACTIVITIES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Trustee Wilson attended the Community Resource Commission meeting. 
 
Clerk Demas welcomed Treasurer Burghardt. 
 
Trustee Lentz noted the passing of Michigan Township Association (MTA) President Harold 
Koviak. 
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
October 7 closed session minutes were provided to Board Members. 
 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the Agenda. Seconded by Trustee Trezise. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
Trustee Wilson moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Supported by Treasurer 
Burghardt. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
10. ACTION ITEMS 

None 
 

11. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Township Manager Review Process 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson outlined the review process. 
 
Board members asked for a fillable form to be sent electronically. 
 

B. Special Use Permit #25-21 – St. Martha’s Parish and School – 1100 West Grand River – 
Addition to a building over 25,000 feet 
 
Director Schmitt gave an overview of the permit request. 
 



Page 3 

Board members asked about water and sewer service. 
 
Board members discussed the current property use, Planning Commission 
recommendation, and limited impact on surrounding area. 
 

C. Special Use Permit #25-20 – Fedewa Holdings – 4601 Dobie Road – Construct a series of 
buildings larger than 25,000 feet 
 
Director Schmitt gave an overview of the permit request.  Jerry Fedewa and David Fedewa, 
developers, were present to answer questions. 
 
Board members asked about the drainage, protecting neighboring properties from light 
pollution and view of trash receptacles, wetland evaluation, traffic study, Faith Lutheran 
driveway and building height. 
 

D. Hagadorn Land Donation/Acquisition 
 
Deputy Manager Opsommer gave an overview of the proposed acquisition. 
 
Board members asked about the wetlands, possible fuel tank contamination, placement of 
current structures, ability to create pathways, requesting an easement to Hagadorn, and 
management of the property by the Township. 
 
Board members commented about value to the Township of acquiring the site. 

 
E. Senior Center Update 

 
Manager Dempsey gave an update about staff progress towards the project. 
 
Board members asked about the school partnership potential, the grant funding and 
extending the grant timeline, about the proposed Nokomis Cultural Center idea, and if any 
additional buildings are being considered by staff.  

 
12. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Supervisor Hendrickson opened public comment at 7:33 pm. 

 
John Leone spoke about SUP #25-20 and SUP #25-21, items 11.C and 11.B. 
 
Debra Major, Kristina Kloc, Bradley Shaw, Jerry Fedewa, David Fedewa, and David Kloc spoke 
about SUP #25-20, item 11.C 
 
Supervisor Hendrickson closed public comment at 7:50 pm. 
 

13. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
 

Supervisor Hendrickson asked staff to look at zero-based assumption for traffic impact 
regarding SUP #25-20. 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION  

 



Page 4 

Trustee Trezise moved to enter closed session under MCL 15.268(1)(h) to consult with 
the Township attorney regarding a confidential written legal opinion. Supported by 
Trustee Wilson. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 
Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
At 7:51 pm, the Board entered into closed session. 
 
At 8:29 pm, the Board returned to open session. 
 
Trustee Trezise moved to approve a settlement in the amount of $10,000 to settle a 
complaint filed against Meridian Township. Supported by Trustee Wilson. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 
Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Trustee Lentz moved to adjourn. Supported by Treasurer Burghardt. 

 
VOICE VOTE YEAS:  Supervisor Hendrickson, Clerk Demas, Treasurer 

Burghardt, Trustee Lentz, Trustee Sundland, Trustee Trezise, 
and Trustee Wilson. 
 
NAYS: NONE 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm. 
 
 
 
 

 
__________________________________ 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Supervisor 

 
__________________________________ 

Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 























 
 

9. D 
 
 
 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor                 

November 6, 2025 

2026 Board Meeting Schedule Resolution 

 

 

The attached 2026 Proposed Regular Board Meeting Schedule is submitted to the 

Township Board in compliance with Board Policy 3.1.3.a. such that: 

i. The establishment of the meeting schedule is the Board’s responsibility. 
ii. The meeting schedule is subject to Board Policies (as discussed below) and through its 
Rules & Procedures (Rule 2.1 - Township Board Meetings). 

 
The following motion is proposed: 

 
MOVE TO ADOPT THE 2026 TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE RESOLUTION.  

 
Attachment: 

1. 2026 Board Meeting Schedule Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 



2026 TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 

RESOLUTION 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 
Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 6th day of November, 
2025 at 6:00 pm, local time. 

 
PRESENT:   

ABSENT:   

 

The following resolution was offered by and supported by . 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board desires to announce the time, date, and place of all regular 
meetings of the Board, pursuant to MCL 42.7; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board deems the 2026 regular meeting schedule sufficient to uphold the 

Board’s Policies and Procedures, and advance its Global Ends. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan that the Township Board adopts its regular 2026 meeting schedule as follows: 

 

Tuesday, January 6, 2026 
Tuesday, January 20, 2026 

 
Tuesday, February 3, 2026 
Tuesday, February 10, 2026 
Tuesday, February 17, 2026 

 
Tuesday, March 3, 2026 
Tuesday, March 17, 2026 

 
Tuesday, April 7, 2026 
Tuesday, April 21, 2026 

  Tuesday, April 28, 2026                         
 
Thursday, May 7, 2026 
Tuesday, May 19, 2026 

 
Tuesday, June 2, 2026 
Tuesday, June 16, 2026 

 
Tuesday, July 7, 2026 
Tuesday, July 21, 2026 
 
Thursday, August 6, 2026 
Tuesday, August 18, 2026 

6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 
6:00 pm. Regular Meeting  
6:00pm Joint Board and Commission Meeting 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting  

 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
6:00 pm Joint Board Local Government and Schools Meeting 

 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting     
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting  
6:00 pm Regular Meeting  

 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
6:00 pm Regular Meeting 



Township Board 2026 Meeting Schedule 
Page 2 

 

Tuesday, September 1, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting                                                       
Tuesday, September 15, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 

Tuesday, October 6, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, October 20, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 
Thursday, November 5, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, November 17, 2026  6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 

Tuesday, December 1, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, December 15, 2026 6:00 pm Regular Meeting 

 
2. Each of the above meetings shall be held at the specified time in the Town Hall Room of the 

Meridian Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan (517) 853.4000, unless 
changed and noticed in accordance with MCL 15.265. 

 
3. A summary of this resolution stating date, place, and time shall be posted in the Meridian 

Municipal Building within ten (10) days after the first regularly scheduled meeting of the year 
in accordance with MCL 15.265. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS:   

NAYS:   

Resolution declared adopted. 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF INGHAM) 

 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and a complete copy of 
a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 6th day of November, 2024. 

 
 

 
____________________________________________________ 
Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

9.E 

To:  Board Members 

From:  Deanne Muliett, Deputy Treasurer 

Date:  October 30, 2025  

Re:  Third Quarter 2025 Investment Report 

 

Attached is the third quarter of 2025 Investment Report from the Treasurer’s Office. The report 
details our fixed and non-fixed Meridian Township investments and the financial institutions that 
are holding Township investments.  
 
In a notable change from the prior quarter, this report reflects the September maturity of $4.3 
million in Certificates of Deposits (CDs). These proceeds will be allocated to our local roads 
program. 



MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP

September 30, 2025



September 30, 2025

CONTENTS

PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW | FIXED INCOME���������������������� 3

TRANSACTIONS | FIXED INCOME ������������������������������������� 4

HOLDINGS | FIXED INCOME����������������������������������������������� 6

HOLDINGS | FIXED INCOME DETAILS������������������������������ 8

INCOME / EXPENSE | FIXED INCOME���������������������������� 10

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW ���������������������������������������������� 11

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES������������������������������������������������� 12

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES������������������������������������������������� 13



    As of September 30, 2025

  PORTOLIO MARKET VALUE

  NUMBER OF HOLDINGS

  PURCHASE YIELD

  YIELD TO MATURITY

  ESTIMATED ANNUAL INCOME

  AVERAGE COUPON*

  AVERAGE MATURITY (Yrs)

  AVERAGE CREDIT RATING

  TOTAL CASH %

*Coupn Bearing Investments

   Q2 2025 Yield

3.99%

   MI CLASS 4.41%

   MSUFCU 4.47%

   Road Improvement Funds 3.61%

Total 4.11%

   Q3 2025 Yield

3.79%

   MI CLASS 4.19%

   MSUFCU 4.46%

   Road Improvement Funds 3.97%

Total 4.09%

  QUARTERLY PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP SUMMARY

3.91%

$45,700,752

24

3.91%

$1,433,872

$6,726,454.55

$17,454,147.91

$817,542.27

$30,783,384.91

AA+

CASH BALANCE

   Morgan Stanley Money Market Fund

   Morgan Stanley Money Market Fund

$1,520,559.16

1.17

2.88%

$4,207,719.09

Amount

 *Only Includes Funds Invested with Robinson

50%

Amount

$29,403,246.54

$10,991,135.57

$17,645,943.08

$823,129.82

0%

16%

5% 4%

9%

2%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Cash Under 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Year 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years 5 -6 Years

MATURITY DISTRIBUTION

50%

13%

21%

9%
7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Cash Treasuries CD Agency MBS

SECTOR ALLOCATION

General Fund, 
$15,739,961.93 

Land Preserve 
Reserve, 

$2,874,764.98 

Public Works, 
$1,890,497.41 

RESERVES*

Horizon Bank, 
$1,544,213.44 Huntington 

Custody, 
$20,505,224.32 

MI Class, 
$17,645,943.08 

MSU Federal CU, 
$823,129.82 

First National Bank 
of MI, 

$2,678,720.28 

Independent Bank, 
$2,503,520.83 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTION BREAKDOWN



September 30, 2025 | 3

Portfolio Characteristics Credit Quality Breakdown

Maturity Distribution (%) Sector Allocation (%)

PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW | FIXED INCOME

Portfolio Market Value $20,505,224.32

Number of Holdings 19

Yield to Maturity 3.69%

Yield to Maturity at Cost 3.24%

Estimated Annual Income $404,996.35

Average Coupon 2.52%

Average Years to Maturity 2.35

Average Credit Rating  

(09/30/2025)



September 30, 2025 | 4

TRANSACTIONS | FIXED INCOME

CUSIP Description Current Units Trade Date Settle Date Price Principal
Accrued 
Interest Total Amount

Net Realized 
Gain/Loss

Custody Fee
CCYUSD US DOLLAR (130.13) 09/09/2025 09/09/2025 -- $130.13 -- $130.13 --
CCYUSD US DOLLAR (15.61) 09/09/2025 09/09/2025 -- $15.61 -- $15.61 --
CCYUSD US DOLLAR (1.25) 09/09/2025 09/09/2025 -- $1.25 -- $1.25 --
CCYUSD US DOLLAR (22.59) 09/09/2025 09/09/2025 -- $22.59 -- $22.59 --
Total Custody 
Fee -- -- -- -- -- $169.58 -- $169.58 --

Interest
3140HVYK4 FN BL4313 -- 09/01/2025 09/01/2025 -- $1,984.86 -- $1,984.86 --
3140HYAD0 FN BL6303 -- 09/01/2025 09/01/2025 -- $3,734.39 -- $3,734.39 --
3140HYAD0 FN BL6303 -- 09/01/2025 09/01/2025 -- $259.78 -- $259.78 --
3130AV5P3 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS -- 09/08/2025 09/08/2025 -- $8,203.13 -- $8,203.13 --

3133ENQ37 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP -- 09/29/2025 09/29/2025 -- $7,218.75 -- $7,218.75 --

32110YUJ2 First National Bank of America -- 09/30/2025 09/30/2025 -- $721.92 -- $721.92 --
32110YUG8 First National Bank of America -- 09/30/2025 09/30/2025 -- $1,868.49 -- $1,868.49 --
9128285C0 UNITED STATES TREASURY -- 09/30/2025 09/30/2025 -- $37,500.00 -- $37,500.00 --
Total Interest -- -- -- -- -- $61,491.32 -- $61,491.32 --

Maturity
9128285C0 UNITED STATES TREASURY (2,500,000.00) 09/30/2025 09/30/2025 $100.00 $2,500,000.00 -- $2,500,000.00 --
Total Maturity -- -- -- -- -- $2,500,000.00 -- $2,500,000.00 --

Money 
Market Funds
61747C608 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV -- 09/02/2025 09/02/2025 -- $17.15 -- $17.15 --
61747C608 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV -- 09/02/2025 09/02/2025 -- $4,432.41 -- $4,432.41 --
61747C608 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV -- 09/02/2025 09/02/2025 -- $802.33 -- $802.33 --
61747C608 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV -- 09/02/2025 09/02/2025 -- $106.76 -- $106.76 --
Total Money 
Market Funds -- -- -- -- -- $5,358.65 -- $5,358.65 --

Principal 
Paydown
3140HYAD0 FN BL6303 (263.55) 09/01/2025 09/01/2025 -- $263.55 -- $263.55 ($0.00)
3140HYAD0 FN BL6303 (3,788.58) 09/01/2025 09/01/2025 -- $3,788.59 -- $3,788.59 $313.94



September 30, 2025 | 5

TRANSACTIONS | FIXED INCOME

CUSIP Description Current Units Trade Date Settle Date Price Principal
Accrued 
Interest Total Amount

Net Realized 
Gain/Loss

Total Principal 
Paydown -- -- -- -- -- $4,052.14 -- $4,052.14 --



September 30, 2025 | 6

HOLDINGS | FIXED INCOME

CUSIP Quantity Description
Coupon 

Rate
Final 

Maturity
Blended 

Rating

Yield to 
Maturity

at Cost
Yield to 

Worst Price Market Value

% of 
Market 

Value
Cash
61747C608 1,328,158.78 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 AAA -- 3.79% $1.00 $1,328,158.78 6.48%
61747C608 35,623.14 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 AAA -- 3.79% $1.00 $35,623.14 0.17%
61747C608 6,053.41 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 AAA -- 3.79% $1.00 $6,053.41 0.03%
61747C608 2,837,883.76 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 AAA -- 3.79% $1.00 $2,837,883.76 13.84%
Total Cash 4,207,719.09 -- 3.79% -- AAA -- 3.79% -- $4,207,719.09 20.52%

CD
32110YUJ2 1,000,000.00 First National Bank of America 0.85% 09/30/2026 NR 0.85% 3.82% $97.09 $970,901.29 4.73%
32110YUG8 2,000,000.00 First National Bank of America 1.10% 09/29/2028 NR 1.10% 3.66% $92.74 $1,854,874.27 9.05%
48128UHQ5 90,000.00 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 1.20% 07/31/2030 NR 1.20% 3.76% $88.79 $80,090.58 0.39%
Total CD 3,090,000.00 -- 1.02% -- NR 1.02% 3.72% -- $2,905,866.14 14.17%

Treasuries
9128282R0 6,000,000.00 UNITED STATES TREASURY 2.25% 08/15/2027 AA+ 3.53% 3.63% $97.52 $5,868,179.35 28.62%
Total 
Treasuries 6,000,000.00 -- 2.25% -- AA+ 3.53% 3.63% -- $5,868,179.35 28.62%

Agency
3130APGT6 500,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 1.15% 10/28/2026 AA+ 1.15% 3.82% $97.21 $488,498.25 2.38%
3133ENQ37 350,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 4.13% 09/29/2028 AA+ 4.37% 3.66% $101.31 $354,664.86 1.73%
3130B3W25 350,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 4.30% 11/27/2028 AA+ 4.29% 3.67% $101.86 $361,692.49 1.76%
3133ER2K6 350,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 4.25% 01/30/2029 AA+ 4.29% 3.70% $101.71 $358,495.69 1.75%
3133ELL28 500,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 1.15% 06/18/2029 AA+ 4.04% 3.72% $91.16 $457,462.64 2.23%
3133EEWA4 450,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 2.91% 06/27/2029 AA+ 4.46% 3.72% $97.20 $440,804.85 2.15%
3133ENV64 500,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 4.38% 10/24/2029 AA+ 4.15% 3.74% $102.37 $521,413.93 2.54%
3134A3ZU3 450,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP 0.00% 12/14/2029 AA+ 4.54% 3.88% $85.09 $382,902.30 1.87%
3133ER4H1 325,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS FUNDING CORP 4.50% 01/18/2030 AA+ 4.30% 3.76% $102.91 $337,422.80 1.65%
3130AV5P3 375,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 4.38% 03/08/2030 AA+ 4.02% 3.77% $102.45 $385,242.80 1.88%
Total 
Agency 4,150,000.00 -- 3.03% -- AA+ 3.89% 3.74% -- $4,088,600.60 19.94%

MBS
3140HYAD0 158,936.63 FN BL6303 1.90% 05/01/2030 AA+ 1.88% 4.19% $91.11 $145,058.78 0.71%
3140HYAD0 2,284,713.99 FN BL6303 1.90% 05/01/2030 AA+ 4.04% 4.19% $91.11 $2,085,219.91 10.17%
3140HVYK4 1,000,000.00 FN BL4313 2.31% 09/01/2031 AA+ 3.70% 4.31% $90.51 $906,995.76 4.42%
Total MBS 3,443,650.62 -- 2.01% -- AA+ 3.84% 4.22% -- $3,137,274.45 15.30%



September 30, 2025 | 7

HOLDINGS | FIXED INCOME

CUSIP Quantity Description
Coupon 

Rate
Final 

Maturity
Blended 

Rating

Yield to 
Maturity

at Cost
Yield to 

Worst Price Market Value

% of 
Market 

Value

Municipal

594654PK5 150,000.00 MICHIGAN ST HSG DEV AUTH SINGLE FAMILY 
MTG REV 1.41% 06/01/2027 AA 4.15% 3.84% $96.11 $144,871.77 0.71%

594654XU4 150,000.00 MICHIGAN ST HSG DEV AUTH SINGLE FAMILY 
MTG REV 4.05% 12/01/2027 AA 4.05% 3.82% $100.46 $152,712.92 0.74%

Total 
Municipal 300,000.00 -- 2.76% -- AA 4.10% 3.83% -- $297,584.69 1.45%

Grand Total 21,191,369.71 -- 2.52% -- -- 3.24% 3.79% -- $20,505,224.32 100.00%



September 30, 2025 | 8

HOLDINGS | FIXED INCOME DETAILS

CUSIP Quantity Description
Coupon 

Rate
Final 

Maturity
Purchase 

Date
Settle 
Date

Total Adjusted 
Cost Market Value

Market Value + 
Accrued

Unrealized 
Gain/Loss

Cash
61747C608 2,837,883.76 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 -- -- $2,837,883.76 $2,837,883.76 $2,837,883.76 $0.00
61747C608 6,053.41 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 -- -- $6,053.41 $6,053.41 $6,053.41 $0.00
61747C608 1,328,158.78 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 -- -- $1,328,158.78 $1,328,158.78 $1,328,158.78 $0.00
61747C608 35,623.14 MORG STAN I LQ:GV ADV 3.79% 09/30/2025 -- -- $35,623.14 $35,623.14 $35,623.14 $0.00
Total Cash 4,207,719.09 -- 3.79% -- -- -- $4,207,719.09 $4,207,719.09 $4,207,719.09 $0.00

CD
32110YUJ2 1,000,000.00 First National Bank of America 0.85% 09/30/2026 09/30/2021 09/30/2021 $1,000,000.00 $970,878.00 $970,901.29 ($29,122.00)
32110YUG8 2,000,000.00 First National Bank of America 1.10% 09/29/2028 04/12/2024 04/12/2024 $2,000,000.00 $1,854,814.00 $1,854,874.27 ($145,186.00)
48128UHQ5 90,000.00 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 1.20% 07/31/2030 07/31/2020 07/31/2020 $90,000.00 $79,907.13 $80,090.58 ($10,092.87)
Total CD 3,090,000.00 -- 1.02% -- -- -- $3,090,000.00 $2,905,599.13 $2,905,866.14 ($184,400.87)

Treasuries
9128282R0 6,000,000.00 UNITED STATES TREASURY 2.25% 08/15/2027 09/14/2022 09/15/2022 $5,861,713.02 $5,850,937.50 $5,868,179.35 ($10,775.52)
Total 
Treasuries 6,000,000.00 -- 2.25% -- -- -- $5,861,713.02 $5,850,937.50 $5,868,179.35 ($10,775.52)

Agency
3130APGT6 500,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 1.15% 10/28/2026 12/01/2021 12/01/2021 $500,000.00 $486,054.50 $488,498.25 ($13,945.50)

3133ENQ37 350,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP 4.13% 09/29/2028 01/16/2025 01/17/2025 $347,616.06 $354,584.65 $354,664.86 $6,968.59

3130B3W25 350,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 4.30% 11/27/2028 01/30/2025 01/31/2025 $350,051.40 $356,508.60 $361,692.49 $6,457.20

3133ER2K6 350,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP 4.25% 01/30/2029 01/30/2025 01/31/2025 $349,533.58 $355,975.20 $358,495.69 $6,441.62

3133ELL28 500,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP 1.15% 06/18/2029 03/07/2025 03/10/2025 $450,637.21 $455,817.50 $457,462.64 $5,180.29

3133EEWA4 450,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP 2.91% 06/27/2029 01/23/2025 01/24/2025 $426,307.75 $437,385.60 $440,804.85 $11,077.85

3133ENV64 500,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP 4.38% 10/24/2029 02/25/2025 02/26/2025 $504,219.87 $511,874.00 $521,413.93 $7,654.13

3134A3ZU3 450,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE 
CORP 0.00% 12/14/2029 01/23/2025 01/24/2025 $372,657.33 $382,902.30 $382,902.30 $10,244.97

3133ER4H1 325,000.00 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANKS 
FUNDING CORP 4.50% 01/18/2030 02/24/2025 02/25/2025 $327,561.49 $334,457.18 $337,422.80 $6,895.68

3130AV5P3 375,000.00 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 4.38% 03/08/2030 03/21/2025 03/24/2025 $380,359.67 $384,194.63 $385,242.80 $3,834.95
Total 
Agency 4,150,000.00 -- 3.03% -- -- -- $4,008,944.36 $4,059,754.15 $4,088,600.60 $50,809.79



September 30, 2025 | 9

HOLDINGS | FIXED INCOME DETAILS

CUSIP Quantity Description
Coupon 

Rate
Final 

Maturity
Purchase 

Date
Settle 
Date

Total Adjusted 
Cost Market Value

Market Value + 
Accrued

Unrealized 
Gain/Loss

MBS
3140HYAD0 158,936.63 FN BL6303 1.90% 05/01/2030 04/17/2024 04/17/2024 $158,936.63 $144,807.79 $145,058.78 ($14,128.84)
3140HYAD0 2,284,713.99 FN BL6303 1.90% 05/01/2030 04/27/2022 04/28/2022 $2,098,492.87 $2,081,611.97 $2,085,219.91 ($16,880.90)
3140HVYK4 1,000,000.00 FN BL4313 2.31% 09/01/2031 10/28/2019 10/28/2019 $928,890.79 $905,074.93 $906,995.76 ($23,815.86)
Total MBS 3,443,650.62 -- 2.01% -- -- -- $3,186,320.28 $3,131,494.69 $3,137,274.45 ($54,825.60)

Municipal

594654PK5 150,000.00 MICHIGAN ST HSG DEV AUTH 
SINGLE FAMILY MTG REV 1.41% 06/01/2027 03/28/2025 03/31/2025 $143,450.85 $144,165.77 $144,871.77 $714.92

594654XU4 150,000.00 MICHIGAN ST HSG DEV AUTH 
SINGLE FAMILY MTG REV 4.05% 12/01/2027 10/03/2024 10/17/2024 $150,000.00 $150,690.42 $152,712.92 $690.42

Total 
Municipal 300,000.00 -- 2.76% -- -- -- $293,450.85 $294,856.19 $297,584.69 $1,405.34

Grand Total 21,191,369.71 -- 2.52% -- -- -- $20,648,147.60 $20,450,360.74 $20,505,224.32 ($197,786.86)



September 30, 2025 | 10

INCOME / EXPENSE | FIXED INCOME

Current Month 3 Month Summary

Beginning Total Market Value $20,432,121.39

Contributions $0.00

Withdrawals ($169.58)

Realized Gains $313.93

Unrealized Gains $31,310.21

Interest $66,849.97

Change In Accrued Income ($25,201.60)

Ending Total Market Value $20,505,224.32

Beginning Total Market Value $20,240,299.79

Contributions $0.00

Withdrawals ($505.04)

Realized Gains $969.17

Unrealized Gains $138,176.87

Interest $175,336.01

Change In Accrued Income ($49,052.47)

Ending Total Market Value $20,505,224.32



September 30, 2025 | 11

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Performance Returns (%)

Period Month to Date Quarter to Date Year to Date Trailing Year
Since Inception* 

(02/19/2024)
Meridian Township 0.36% 1.31% 4.52% 4.02% 4.93%
Benchmark Return 0.33% 1.10% 3.47% 4.25% 4.92%

*Annualized. Portfolio returns are a total return calculation, gross of fees.
Benchmark: Bloomberg 3-Month T-Bill (66%) and the 1-3 Year U.S. Government Index (33%)



September 30, 2025 | 12

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

This statement is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or recommendations. Robinson Capital Management, 
LLC (“RCM”) is an investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is required to maintain a written disclosure statement of our 
background and business experience. RCM compiled this statement for the sole use of the client for which it was prepared. This statement is intended only for the 
parties to whom it was delivered or its authorized agents and should not be copied or distributed to any other person. If you would like to receive a copy of our 
current disclosure statement, please let us know.

The professionals at RCM have diligently and responsibly prepared this performance report, adhering to professional standards, and exercising reasonable 
care. The information presented is sourced externally and is generally considered reliable and publicly accessible, although its accuracy, completeness, or 
appropriateness cannot be fully assured. The details regarding security holdings and face values are based on information provided by the client’s custodian. 
It is important to note that the transaction dates in this report, as provided by the custodian, may not align with those in money manager statements. Despite 
our efforts to ensure that the information is accurate and comprehensive, we are not liable for any errors that may be present. Information about fixed income 
managers and indices is obtained from external sources.

RCM’s monthly statement is intended to detail our investment advisory activity. The custodian bank maintains control of assets and executes (i.e., settles) all 
investment transactions. The custodian statement is the official record of security and cash holdings and transactions. RCM recognizes that clients may use these 
reports to facilitate record keeping and that the custodian bank statement and the RCM statement should be reconciled, and differences resolved. Many custodians 
use a settlement date basis which may result in the need to reconcile due to a timing difference.

RCM does not have the authority to withdraw funds from or deposit funds to the custodian. Our clients retain responsibility for their internal accounting policies, 
implementing and enforcing internal controls and generating ledger entries or otherwise recording transactions.

It is not possible to invest directly in an index. The index returns shown throughout this material do not represent the results of actual trading of investor assets.

Third-party providers maintain the indices shown and calculate the index levels and performance shown or discussed. Index returns do not reflect payment of 
any sales charges or fees an investor would pay to purchase the securities they represent. The imposition of these fees and charges would cause investment 
performance to be lower than the performance shown. Index performance is shown for illustrative purposes only and does not predict or depict the performance 
of any investment.

Performance is presented in accordance with the CFA Institute’s Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). Unless otherwise noted, performance is shown 
gross of fees. Returns for periods greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis. Past performance is not indicative of future returns.

For more information regarding RCM’s services or entities, please visit www.robinsonfunds.com.

© 2025 Robinson Capital Management, LLC. Further distribution is not permitted without prior written consent. All rights reserved.



September 30, 2025 | 13

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

Market Value: Market values that include accrued interest are derived from closing bid prices as of the last business day of the month as supplied by 
third-party pricing sources. For a security that is not listed on a recognized exchange, we will generally establish a value on the valuation date by soliciting 
representative prices from one or more dealers or pricing services that typically provide valuations or market quotations for assets of a type substantially 
similar to that particular security. In the event a valuation or market quotation for a security or financial instrument is not readily available from any dealer 
or pricing service we deem to be reliable; we will assign a value in good faith to such security with input from at least one portfolio manager familiar with the 
security.

Total Adjusted Cost: The original cost of the principal of the security is adjusted for the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase date 
until the date of the report. Discounts or premiums are amortized on a scientific basis for all securities except asset-backed, which are amortized using a straight-
line basis.

Tax Reporting: Cost data and realized gains / losses are provided for informational purposes only. Please review for accuracy and consult your tax advisor to 
determine the tax consequences of your security transactions. RCM does not report such information to the IRS or other taxing authorities and is not responsible 
for the accuracy of such information that may be required to be reported to federal, state, or other taxing authorities.

Financial Situation: In order to better serve you, RCM should be promptly notified of any material change in your investment objective or financial situation.

Callable Securities: Securities subject to redemption prior to maturity may be redeemed in whole or in part before maturity, which could affect the yield 
represented. Securities are included in the maturity distribution analysis to their stated maturity date, although, they may be called prior to maturity.

Cash: Money market fund/cash balances are included in performance and duration computations.

Portfolio: The securities in this portfolio, including shares of mutual funds, are not guaranteed, or otherwise protected by RCM, the FDIC (except for certain non-
negotiable certificates of deposit under $250,000 limit) or any government agency. Investment in securities involves risks, including the possible loss of the amount 
invested.

Ratings: Credit rating information provided is based upon a good faith inquiry of selected sources, but its accuracy and completeness cannot be guaranteed.

Please review the detailed pages of this statement carefully. If you think your statement is wrong, missing account information, or if you need more information 
about a transaction, please contact RCM within 60 days of receipt. If you have other concerns or questions regarding your account, you should contact a member of 
your client management team at the address below.

Robinson Capital Management
63 Kercheval Avenue, Suite 111

Grosse Pointe Farms, MI 48236



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. F

To: Board Members 

From: Stephen Gebes, IT Director 

Date: October 31, 2025 

Re: Brightline IT-Hewlett Packard Enterprise Care Contract Renewal 

In 2022, Township Staff worked with Brightline IT to replace the aging Dell Storage Area Network 

array with a Hewlett Packard Enterprises Alletra 5030 SAN array. Brightline bundled a three-year 

support agreement with the hardware purchase. That coverage is ending. Needing to maintain 

support on this critical infrastructure, the Township is exercising our option to extend the support 

agreement to cover an additional year of support for the HP SAN device.  

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH BRIGHTLINE IT, EXTENDING HEWLETT 

PACKARD ENTERPRISE TECH CARE ESSENTIAL SUPPORT FOR THE ALLETRA SAN 

ARRAY AN ADDITIONAL YEAR THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2026. 

Attachment: 

1. Brightline IT-Hewlett Packard Enterprise Care Contract



We have prepared a quote for you

HPE Tech Care Renewal 2025

Quote # 005738
Version 1

Prepared for:

Meridian Township

Stephen Gebes
gebes@meridian.mi.us



1 Year Term Option:

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

1 1 Year HPE Tech Care Essential  with DMR Service Renewal for HPE Alletra 5030
Storage Array

Includes: 

 HPE Replacement Parts, Onsite Support, Defective Media Retention

 HPE Essential Service Level, Technical Support, General Technical Guidance

 HPE License to Use & Software Updates, HPE Recommended Doc Update

 HPE Electronic Software Information, HPE Recommended Software Update Method

$5,628.00 $5,628.00

Term: 12/01/2025 - 11/30/2026

1 HPE Special Discount 2025 ($1,731.00) ($1,731.00)

Subtotal: $3,897.00

2 Year Term Option: * Optional

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

1 2 Year HPE Tech Care Essential  with DMR Service Renewal for HPE Alletra 5030
Storage Array

Includes: 

 HPE Replacement Parts, Onsite Support, Defective Media Retention

 HPE Essential Service Level, Technical Support, General Technical Guidance

 HPE License to Use & Software Updates, HPE Recommended Doc Update

 HPE Electronic Software Information, HPE Recommended Software Update Method

$11,256.00 $11,256.00

Term: 12/01/2025 - 11/30/2027

1 HPE Special Discount 2025 ($3,846.00) ($3,846.00)

* Optional Subtotal: $7,410.00

Page: 2 of 6Quote #005738 v1



3 Year Term Option: * Optional

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

1 3 Year HPE Tech Care Essential  with DMR Service Renewal for HPE Alletra 5030
Storage Array

Includes: 

 HPE Replacement Parts, Onsite Support, Defective Media Retention

 HPE Essential Service Level, Technical Support, General Technical Guidance

 HPE License to Use & Software Updates, HPE Recommended Doc Update

 HPE Electronic Software Information, HPE Recommended Software Update Method

$16,884.00 $16,884.00

Term: 12/01/2025 - 11/30/2028

1 HPE Special Discount 2025 ($5,921.00) ($5,921.00)

* Optional Subtotal: $10,963.00

Page: 3 of 6Quote #005738 v1



HPE Tech Care Renewal 2025 Quote #005738 v1

Brightline Technologies

Prepared by:Prepared For:

Meridian Township

P: (517) 853-4222
E: gebes@meridian.mi.us

P: (248) 886-0248
E: James@brightlineit.com

James Cabalum
10355 Citation Dr.
Brighton, MI 48116

Stephen Gebes
5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, MI 48864

Date Issued:

10.21.2025

Expires:

10.31.2025

Quote Summary

Description Amount

1 Year Term Option: $3,897.00

Total: $3,897.00

*Optional Expenses

Description One-Time

2 Year Term Option: $7,410.00

3 Year Term Option: $10,963.00

Optional Subtotal: $18,373.00

Payment Terms: NET 15

Provider reserves the right to correct any errors, inaccuracies or omissions, and to change or update information or cancel orders if any
information, including Services or pricing is inaccurate.

Acceptance and Incorporation by Reference

This Order together with the Master Services Agreement and Service Attachments and other terms and conditions identified on Exhibit A, all
of which are incorporated herein by reference (collectively, the “Agreement”) is between Brightline Technologies (sometimes referred to as
“we,” “us,” “our,” or “Provider”), and the customer identified on the Order (sometimes referred to as “you,” “your,” or “Client”). This
Agreement is effective as of the date the Client accepts the Order (the “Effective Date”).

By signing or accepting this Order, Client acknowledges, represents, and warrants that it has read and agrees to the terms and conditions
identified on Exhibit A to this Order which are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

The parties hereby agree that electronic signatures to this Order shall be relied upon and will bind them to the obligations stated herein. Each
party hereby warrants and represents that it has the express authority to execute this Agreement(s).

Provider may make changes to the Agreement at any time. If there are changes, Provider will revise the date at the top of the document.

Page: 4 of 6Quote #005738 v1



Provider may or may not provide Client with additional notice regarding such changes. Client should review the terms and conditions
regularly. Unless otherwise noted, the amended terms and conditions will be effective immediately, and your continued use of the Services
thereafter constitutes your acceptance of the changes. If you do not agree to the amended terms and conditions, you must stop using the
Services immediately.  Please note, you may incur a termination fee or other third-party fees, if applicable.

The parties, acting through their authorized officers, hereby execute this Agreement.

Meridian Township

Signature:

Name: Scott Hendrickson

Date:

Page: 5 of 6Quote #005738 v1



Exhibit A

Agreement Description

Master Services Agreement General terms and conditions applicable to all Provider products and services.

Service Attachment for Managed Services Core managed services including monitoring, remote management, and help-desk.

Service Attachment for Managed 
Compliance Services

Consulting and advising regarding regulatory and legal compliance.

Service Attachment for Co-Managed 
Services

Describes the division of responsibilities in a Co-managed environment.

Service Attachment for Penetration Testing Penetration testing and simulating cyberattacks to identify and address vulnerabilities
within an organization’s systems, networks, and applications.

Service Attachment for Colocation Responsibility matrix for organizations not using Provider's fully managed services.

Schedule of Services Description of managed services offered by Provider.

Data Processing Agreement Data security and privacy agreement including statutorily required terms.

Service Level Objectives Targeted response times by tier of severity.

Schedule of Third-Party Services Notice of third-party services and waiver of claims.

Page: 6 of 6Quote #005738 v1

https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. G

To: Board Members 

From: Stephen Gebes, IT Director 

Date: October 31, 2025 

Re: Brightline IT-Palo Alto Care Contract Renewal 

In 2022, Township Staff worked with Brightline IT to replace the aging Sophos UTM Firewall and 

Remote Ethernet Devices with Palo Alto Firewalls at seven separate facilities. Brightline bundled a 

three-year support agreement with the hardware purchase. That coverage is ending. Needing to 

maintain support for this critical infrastructure, the Township is exercising the option to extend 

the existing support agreement to cover an additional three years of subscriptions & support for 

the Palo Alto security devices.  

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH BRIGHTLINE IT, EXTENDING PALO ALTO 

SUBSCRIPTIONS & SUPPORT FOR THE SEVEN PALO ALTO NETWORK BORDER 

DEVICES AN ADDITIONAL THREE (3) YEARS THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2028. 

Attachment: 

1. Brightline IT-Palo Alto Care Contract



We have prepared a quote for you

Palo Alto Renewal 2025

Quote # 005690
Version 1

Prepared for:

Meridian Township

Stephen Gebes
gebes@meridian.mi.us



1 Year Term Option:

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

2 Palo Alto Advanced WildFire - Subscription License for 1 PA-820 Device in HA
Pair - 1 Year Renewal

$1,616.00 $3,232.00

2 Palo Alto Advanced Threat Prevention - Subscription License  for 1 PA-820
Device in HA Pair - 1 Year Renewal

$1,702.00 $3,404.00

2 Palo Alto Prisma Access Agent Subscription for 1 PA-820 Device in HA Pair - 1
Year Renewal

$1,139.00 $2,278.00

2 Palo Alto Software-Defined Wide Area Networking (SD-WAN) - Subscription for
1 PA-820 Device in HA Pair - 1 Year Renewal

$1,081.00 $2,162.00

2 Palo Alto Advanced URL Filtering - Subscription License for 1 PA-820 Device in
HA Pair - 1 Year Renewal

$1,702.00 $3,404.00

6 Palo AltoPrecision AI Network Security Subscription Renewal Bundle for 1 PA-
410 Device - 1 Year Renewal

(Advanced Threat Prevention, Advanced URL Filtering, Advanced Wildfire, Advanced DNS Security and 
Advanced SD-WAN)

$610.00 $3,660.00

Term: 11/16/2025 - 12/31/2026

6 Palo Alto Prisma Access Agent Subscription for 1 PA-410 Device in HA Pair - 1
Year Renewal

$156.00 $936.00

Term: 01/15/2026 - 12/31/2026

2 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support for 1 PA-820 Device - Extended
Service - Service Depot - Exchange - Parts - 1 Year Renewal

$1,208.00 $2,416.00

1 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support - Service - 24 x 5 - Exchange -
Electronic and Physical - 1 Year Renewal

$2,539.00 $2,539.00

6 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support for 1 PA-410 Device - Service -
Technical - 1 Year Renewal

$188.00 $1,128.00

Term: 11/16/2025 - 12/31/2026

1 Palo Alto - Strata Cloud Manager - Pro - 1 Year $3,955.00 $3,955.00

Subtotal: $29,114.00

Page: 2 of 7Quote #005690 v1



2 Year Term Option: * Optional

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

2 Palo Alto Advanced WildFire - Subscription License for 1 PA-820 Device in HA
Pair - 2 Year Renewal

$3,050.00 $6,100.00

2 Palo Alto Advanced Threat Prevention - Subscription License  for 1 PA-820
Device in HA Pair - 2 Year Renewal

$3,212.00 $6,424.00

2 Palo Alto Prisma Access Agent Subscription for 1 PA-820 Device in HA Pair - 2
Year Renewal

$2,149.00 $4,298.00

2 Palo Alto Software-Defined Wide Area Networking (SD-WAN) - Subscription for
1 PA-820 Device in HA Pair - 2 Year Renewal

$2,040.00 $4,080.00

2 Palo Alto Advanced URL Filtering - Subscription License for 1 PA-820 Device in
HA Pair - 2 Year Renewal

$3,212.00 $6,424.00

6 Palo AltoPrecision AI Network Security Subscription Renewal Bundle for 1 PA-
410 Device - 2 Year Renewal

(Advanced Threat Prevention, Advanced URL Filtering, Advanced Wildfire, Advanced DNS Security and 
Advanced SD-WAN)

$1,150.00 $6,900.00

Term: 11/16/2025 - 12/31/2027

6 Palo Alto Prisma Access Agent Subscription for 1 PA-410 Device in HA Pair - 1
Year Renewal

$317.00 $1,902.00

Term: 01/15/2026 - 12/31/2027

2 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support for 1 PA-820 Device - Extended
Service - Service Depot - Exchange - Parts - 2 Year Renewal

$2,279.00 $4,558.00

1 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support - Service - 24 x 5 - Exchange -
Electronic and Physical - 2 Year Renewal

$4,791.00 $4,791.00

6 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support for 1 PA-410 Device - Service -
Technical - 2 Year Renewal

$354.00 $2,124.00

Term: 11/16/2025 - 12/31/2027

1 Palo Alto - Strata Cloud Manager - Pro - 2 Year $6,631.00 $6,631.00

* Optional Subtotal: $54,232.00

3 Year Term Option: * Optional

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

2 Palo Alto Advanced WildFire - Subscription License for 1 PA-820 Device in HA
Pair - 3 Year Renewal

$3,715.00 $7,430.00

Page: 3 of 7Quote #005690 v1



3 Year Term Option: * Optional

Qty Description Price Ext. Price

2 Palo Alto Advanced Threat Prevention - Subscription License  for 1 PA-820
Device in HA Pair - 3 Year Renewal

$3,913.00 $7,826.00

2 Palo Alto Prisma Access Agent Subscription for 1 PA-820 Device in HA Pair - 3
Year Renewal

$2,603.00 $5,206.00

2 Palo Alto Software-Defined Wide Area Networking (SD-WAN) - Subscription for
1 PA-820 Device in HA Pair - 3 Year Renewal

$2,472.00 $4,944.00

2 Palo Alto Advanced URL Filtering - Subscription License for 1 PA-820 Device in
HA Pair - 3 Year Renewal

$3,715.00 $7,430.00

6 Palo AltoPrecision AI Network Security Subscription Renewal Bundle for 1 PA-
410 Device - 3 Year Renewal

(Advanced Threat Prevention, Advanced URL Filtering, Advanced Wildfire, Advanced DNS Security and 
Advanced SD-WAN)

$1,342.00 $8,052.00

Term: 11/16/2025 - 12/31/2028

6 Palo Alto Prisma Access Agent Subscription for 1 PA-410 Device in HA Pair - 3
Year Renewal

$390.00 $2,340.00

Term: 01/15/2026 - 12/31/2028

2 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support for 1 PA-820 Device - Extended
Service - Service Depot - Exchange - Parts - 3 Year Renewal

$3,350.00 $6,700.00

1 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support - Service - 24 x 5 - Exchange -
Electronic and Physical - 3 Year Renewal

$6,175.00 $6,175.00

6 Palo Alto Partner Enabled Premium Support for 1 PA-410 Device - Service -
Technical - 3 Year Renewal

$519.00 $3,114.00

Term: 11/16/2025 - 12/31/2028

1 Palo Alto - Strata Cloud Manager - Pro - 3 Year $9,073.00 $9,073.00

* Optional Subtotal: $68,290.00

Page: 4 of 7Quote #005690 v1



Palo Alto Renewal 2025 Quote #005690 v1

Brightline Technologies

Prepared by:Prepared For:

Meridian Township

P: (517) 853-4442
E: gebes@meridian.mi.us

P: (248) 886-0248
E: antoinette@brightlineit.com

Antoinette Wissner
10355 Citation Dr.
Brighton, MI 48116

Stephen Gebes
5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, MI 48864

Date Issued:

10.16.2025

Expires:

10.31.2025

Quote Summary

Description Amount

1 Year Term Option: $29,114.00

Total: $29,114.00

*Optional Expenses

Description One-Time

2 Year Term Option: $54,232.00

3 Year Term Option: $68,290.00

Optional Subtotal: $122,522.00

Payment Terms: 100% of Software Cost Due Upfront

Provider reserves the right to correct any errors, inaccuracies or omissions, and to change or update information or cancel orders if any
information, including Services or pricing is inaccurate.

Acceptance and Incorporation by Reference

This Order together with the Master Services Agreement and Service Attachments and other terms and conditions identified on Exhibit A, all
of which are incorporated herein by reference (collectively, the “Agreement”) is between Brightline Technologies (sometimes referred to as
“we,” “us,” “our,” or “Provider”), and the customer identified on the Order (sometimes referred to as “you,” “your,” or “Client”). This
Agreement is effective as of the date the Client accepts the Order (the “Effective Date”).

By signing or accepting this Order, Client acknowledges, represents, and warrants that it has read and agrees to the terms and conditions
identified on Exhibit A to this Order which are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

The parties hereby agree that electronic signatures to this Order shall be relied upon and will bind them to the obligations stated herein. Each
party hereby warrants and represents that it has the express authority to execute this Agreement(s).

Provider may make changes to the Agreement at any time. If there are changes, Provider will revise the date at the top of the document.

Page: 5 of 7Quote #005690 v1



Provider may or may not provide Client with additional notice regarding such changes. Client should review the terms and conditions
regularly. Unless otherwise noted, the amended terms and conditions will be effective immediately, and your continued use of the Services
thereafter constitutes your acceptance of the changes. If you do not agree to the amended terms and conditions, you must stop using the
Services immediately.  Please note, you may incur a termination fee or other third-party fees, if applicable.

The parties, acting through their authorized officers, hereby execute this Agreement.

Meridian Township

Signature:

Name: Scott Hendrickson

Date:

Page: 6 of 7Quote #005690 v1



Exhibit A

Agreement Description

Master Services Agreement General terms and conditions applicable to all Provider products and services.

Service Attachment for Managed Services Core managed services including monitoring, remote management, and help-desk.

Service Attachment for Managed 
Compliance Services

Consulting and advising regarding regulatory and legal compliance.

Service Attachment for Co-Managed 
Services

Describes the division of responsibilities in a Co-managed environment.

Service Attachment for Penetration Testing Penetration testing and simulating cyberattacks to identify and address vulnerabilities
within an organization’s systems, networks, and applications.

Service Attachment for Colocation Responsibility matrix for organizations not using Provider's fully managed services.

Schedule of Services Description of managed services offered by Provider.

Data Processing Agreement Data security and privacy agreement including statutorily required terms.

Service Level Objectives Targeted response times by tier of severity.

Schedule of Third-Party Services Notice of third-party services and waiver of claims.

Page: 7 of 7Quote #005690 v1

https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. H

To: Board Members 

From: Stephen Gebes, IT Director 

Date: October 31, 2025 

Re: Brightline IT-QuickHelp & Keeper Contract Renewal 

In 2023, Township Staff worked with Brightline IT to establish an ongoing program to train employees 
to identify security threats to the Township technology infrastructure. This enhanced regimen includes 
a robust training program that integrates audio/video/print/in-person training components with real 
life simulations to help confirm the participants’ ability to properly respond to spam, phishing, and 
other malware threats they may encounter through the course of normal Township business. 
QuickHelp is the computer-based training & simulation part of that program. Keeper is the enterprise 
password management system that is used in conjunction with security training. Although this training 
is more important than ever, our licenses to use the services are coming to an end.  

Components of these services include: 

1. QuickHelp Learning Management System
2. QuickHelp Threat Defense
3. Keeper Enterprise Password Manager
4. External Phishing Testing & Validation

The continuity of these services remains essential to our ongoing security training efforts. 

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH BRIGHTLINE IT, EXTENDING THE 

CURRENTLY DEPLOYED QUICKHELP TRAINING SERVICE AND KEEPER 

PASSWORD MANAGER FOR AN ADDITIONAL YEAR THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 

2026. 

Attachment: 

1. Brightline IT-QuickHelp & Keeper Contract



We have prepared a quote for you

QuickHelp Agreement

Quote # 005752
Version 1

Prepared for:

Meridian Township

Stephen Gebes
gebes@meridian.mi.us



Monthly Services

Qty Description Recurring Ext. Recurring

Terms: The initial term of this agreement is 12 months. 

179 QuickHelp User Bundle - Per User - Per Month $8.00 $1,432.00

Managed Security Awareness Training

Quickhelp Learning Management System

 Microsoft 365 & Cybersecurity Training

QuickHelp - Threat Defense Add-on

 Security awareness training and assessments in addition to simulated Phishing Attack 
campaigns with pre and post training content to educate users

6 Keeper Enterprise Password Manager - Per User - Per Month

 Encrypted vault for every user

 Folders and sub folders

 Shared team folders

 Single Sign-On authentication

 Advanced Two-Factor Authentication

$5.00 $30.00

Term: 11/01/2025 - 12/31/2026

Monthly Subtotal: $1,462.00

Page: 2 of 5Quote #005752 v1



QuickHelp Agreement Quote #005752 v1

Brightline Technologies

Prepared by:Prepared For:

Meridian Township

P: (517) 853-4222
E: gebes@meridian.mi.us

P: (248) 886-0248
E: James@brightlineit.com

James Cabalum
10355 Citation Dr.
Brighton, MI 48116

Stephen Gebes
5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, MI 48864

Date Issued:

10.13.2025

Expires:

10.30.2025

Monthly Recurring Summary

Description Amount

Monthly Services $1,462.00

Monthly Total: $1,462.00

Payment Terms: Billed Monthly

Provider reserves the right to correct any errors, inaccuracies or omissions, and to change or update information or cancel orders if any
information, including Services or pricing is inaccurate.

Acceptance and Incorporation by Reference

This Order together with the Master Services Agreement and Service Attachments and other terms and conditions identified on Exhibit A, all
of which are incorporated herein by reference (collectively, the “Agreement”) is between Brightline Technologies (sometimes referred to as
“we,” “us,” “our,” or “Provider”), and the customer identified on the Order (sometimes referred to as “you,” “your,” or “Client”). This
Agreement is effective as of the date the Client accepts the Order (the “Effective Date”).

By signing or accepting this Order, Client acknowledges, represents, and warrants that it has read and agrees to the terms and conditions
identified on Exhibit A to this Order which are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

The parties hereby agree that electronic signatures to this Order shall be relied upon and will bind them to the obligations stated herein. Each
party hereby warrants and represents that it has the express authority to execute this Agreement(s).

Provider may make changes to the Agreement at any time. If there are changes, Provider will revise the date at the top of the document.
Provider may or may not provide Client with additional notice regarding such changes. Client should review the terms and conditions
regularly. Unless otherwise noted, the amended terms and conditions will be effective immediately, and your continued use of the Services
thereafter constitutes your acceptance of the changes. If you do not agree to the amended terms and conditions, you must stop using the
Services immediately.  Please note, you may incur a termination fee or other third-party fees, if applicable.

The parties, acting through their authorized officers, hereby execute this Agreement.

Page: 3 of 5Quote #005752 v1



Meridian Township

Signature:

Name: Scott Hendrickson

Date:

Page: 4 of 5Quote #005752 v1



Exhibit A

Agreement Description

Master Services Agreement General terms and conditions applicable to all Provider products and services.

Service Attachment for Managed Services Core managed services including monitoring, remote management, and help-desk.

Service Attachment for Managed 
Compliance Services

Consulting and advising regarding regulatory and legal compliance.

Service Attachment for Co-Managed 
Services

Describes the division of responsibilities in a Co-managed environment.

Service Attachment for Penetration Testing Penetration testing and simulating cyberattacks to identify and address vulnerabilities
within an organization’s systems, networks, and applications.

Service Attachment for Colocation Responsibility matrix for organizations not using Provider's fully managed services.

Schedule of Services Description of managed services offered by Provider.

Data Processing Agreement Data security and privacy agreement including statutorily required terms.

Service Level Objectives Targeted response times by tier of severity.

Schedule of Third-Party Services Notice of third-party services and waiver of claims.

Page: 5 of 5Quote #005752 v1

https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Master-Services-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Managed-Service
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Compliance
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Co-managed
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Attachment-for-Penetration-Testing
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Attachment-for-Colocation
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Data-Processing-Agreement
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Service-Level-Objectives
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services
https://mspterms.live/Brightline/Schedule-of-Third-party-services


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. I

To: Board Members 

From: Stephen Gebes, IT Director 

Date: October 31, 2025 

Re: GoTo Technologies USA Contract Update 

GoTo Technologies USA provides the Township with their Central Premier Software & Services. This 
package focuses on remote connectivity and allows for centralized system maintenance & support for 
workers and workstations that are otherwise challenging to connect to required resources. While 
various forms of the service have been utilized for over 15 years, need for the number of locations the 
service is deployed has decreased steadily since the peak usage three years ago. Accordingly, the 
contract is being modified to take us down to the next lower tier of supported assets. 

A motion is prepared for Board consideration: 

MOVE TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH GOTO TECHNOLOGIES USA, LLC, 

REDUCING THE SERVICE TO NOW INCLUDE FIFTY (50) CLIENT INSTALLATIONS.  

Attachment: 

1. GoTo Technologies USA Contract Update



CONTACT INFORMATION. 

Customer:  Meridian Township 
Address: 5151 Marsh Rd,  Okemos, MI United States, 48864 

Main Contact: Team Itstaff 
Email: staff@meridian.mi.us 
Phone: 517.853.4000 

 GoTo Account Email: staff@meridian.mi.us 

VAT/TVA/ABN Number: 

GoTo Representative: 

Name: Jacob Eddy 
Email: jacob.eddy@goto.com 
Phone: 
Fax: 

QUOTE OR OID #: 00432218 

UID #: 6018222541 

GOTO Opp ID #: 2510238344833 

Quote Date: Oct-23-2025 

Quote Expiration Date: Oct-30-2025 

TERM & BILLING INFORMATION. 

Term and Billing Frequency: Annual Annual 

Payment Method: Credit Card 

AGREEMENT. 

This Order Form is governed by the terms of the Terms of Service found at https://www.goto.com/company/legal/terms-and-
conditions unless: Customer has a written agreement mutually agreed upon by GoTo for such Services, in which case such 
written agreement will govern; or (ii) to the extent otherwise set forth in the Supplemental Terms below.  The foregoing shall 
exclude any terms and conditions referenced on a Customer purchase order and will incorporate the Contracting Entities 
Table and the Service Descriptions. 

Supplemental Terms: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, the following supplemental Terms apply: 

• The effective date of this Order Form is the signing date.

• By signing this Order, you are revising your subscription(s) for Product(s) previously purchased. All previous
subscriptions will be removed from your account and replaced with the Product(s) and new term on this Order.
You will receive a prorated credit to your account for any prepaid and unused amounts, based on the remaining
term on your previous subscriptions and the Effective Date of this Order

• Term length of signing date through Dec-31-2026.

SIGNATURES. By signing below, the signatory represents it is legally authorized to enter into the Agreement and agrees to be bound to all terms 
contained in the Agreement.  

CUSTOMER: Meridian Township If Billing Contact is different than above, please provide: 

Billing Address:     \Billing_Address_1\

Billing/Invoicing Contact:  \Billing_Contact_1\  

Telephone: \Billing_Phone_1\     

Email: \Billing_Email_1\ 

\Customer_VTA_1\ 

Signature: 

\s1\ 

Name: \n1\ 

Title: \t1\ 

Customer Authorized Signatory 

Date: \d1\ 

GoTo Technologies USA, LLC 
333 Summer Street, 5th Floor 
Boston, MA 02210-1702 

ORDER FORM 

https://www.goto.com/company/legal/terms-and-conditions
https://www.goto.com/company/legal/terms-and-conditions
https://www.goto.com/company/legal/contracting-entities
https://www.goto.com/company/legal/contracting-entities
https://www.goto.com/company/legal/service-descriptions


SERVICES & FEE SUMMARY. The table below reflects the revised Services purchased. If you subscribe to other Services not stated 
below, such subscriptions shall continue in accordance with the terms of the applicable Services Order and the Agreement. You agree to 
use the Services in accordance with the applicable Use Levels below. All fees are exclusive of VAT, GST and any other applicable taxed 
and/or fees. 

Service Number of Users User Type Tier Contract 
Term 

(Months) 

Monthly 
Subscription 
Fee per User 

New Total 
Subscription 

Fee 

Increase/ Decrease/ 
Remains 

Existing New Total 

Central Premier Decrease 100 50 NAU 14.25 3.00 USD 2,137.50 

TOTAL AMOUNT USD 2,137.50 



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

9. J

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Treasurer’s Office 

November 6, 2025 

Placement of Delinquent Special Assessments, Delinquent Utilities, 

Delinquent False Alarms, Unpaid Lot Mowing/Code Violations and Misc. 

Fees on the Winter Tax Roll for 2025

Listed below are the totals of the delinquent special assessments, delinquent utilities, delinquent 
false alarms, unpaid lot mowing fees and code violation fees that the Board must authorize for 
placement on the 2025 Winter Tax Roll for collection.  All supporting documents are on file with 
the Treasurer’s Office. 

Water: Lake Lansing Watershed $     9,329.29 
Grand River Water Main $    3,775.75 

Sewer: Kansas Rd. Sanitary Sewer $     188.85 

Sidewalks: 2021 Sidewalk $      414.21 
2022 Sidewalk $    1,025.33 

Paving:  Powell Rd Public Improvement $     3460.78 

Drains:  Daniels Drain $     9,672.63 
Encroachment $    1,023.41 

Delinquent Utilities:  $   30,007.13 

Delinquent False Alarms: $     1,250.00 

Unpaid Lot Mowing/Snow removal: $      3,049.70 

“Move to assess the charges identified I the staff memorandum with parcel identification 
available in the Treasurer’s Office dated October 31, 2025 for delinquent Special 
Assessments, Utility Bills, False Alarms, Nuisance, Lot Mowing/Code Violation, and Misc. 
Fees as a tax lien against the subject properties as authorized by Michigan Compiled Laws 
(MCL) 41.727, 41.728, and Meridian Township Ordinance Code Sections 58-32, 58-33, 78-
98, 78-155, 46-5, 82-27, 18-1, and 18-15”



Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

10.A

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Board Members 

Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Community Planning and Development Director 

October 30, 2025 

Special Use Permit #25-21 – Saint Martha Parish and School – 1100 West Grand 
River – Construct an addition to a building over 25,000 feet 

Saint Martha Parish and School has requested to amend an existing special use permit to add onto 
the existing building, which is larger than 25,000 square feet, located at 1100 West Grand River 
Avenue. The applicant is proposing the construction of a two story, 11,000 square foot addition to 
the existing building, adding classroom, lab, storage, and associated space to the school. The 
expansion will occur on the northwest corner of the building, largely screened from public view by 
the existing building.  

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposal at its meeting on September 22, 2025 
and received no input from the general public and had several questions that were discussed with Staff. 
The Planning Commission further discussed the matter at their October 13, 2025 meeting and voted 
unanimously to approve the Special Use Permit to expand the existing building by 11,000 square feet 
for classrooms and general school space. The Township Board initially discussed the request at their 
October 21, 2025 meeting and there was general consensus to move forward with the request.  

As a reminder, Staff is providing the Special Use Permit criteria for direct review by the Board members. 
There are no additional review criteria under the Zoning Ordinance for the matter in question.  

Sec. 86-126 Review Criteria 
Applications for special use permits shall be reviewed for compliance with the following 
standards and requirements, where applicable. An application for a special use permit that 
complies with all the following standards and requirements in this chapter may be approved. 
The applicant shall assure that: 

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.
(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the

Township's comprehensive development plan of current adoption.
(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be

harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character
of the general vicinity and that such a use will not change the essential character of
the same area.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses.
(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties 

or the community.
(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools,

stormwater drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or
that the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use
shall be able to provide any such service.

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30670/638938769351700000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30670/638938769351700000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30806/638967466084130000


(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-
site sanitation facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and stormwater
are proposed, they shall be properly designed and capable of handling the long term
needs of the proposed project.

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the
general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes,
glare, or odors.

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the
natural resources of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural
soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, streams, major forests, wetlands, and
wildlife areas.

Township Board Options 
The Township Board may approve or deny the proposed special use permit for the proposed expansion 
to St. Martha Parish and School at 1100 West Grand River Avenue. Staff would offer the following 
motion for the Township Board’s use in discussing the matter. The Township Board should explicitly 
outline their reasons for approval or denial, based on the Special Use Permit standards outlined above. 

Move to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #25-21, a request from St. 
Martha Parish and School to expand the existing building that is greater than 25,000 
square feet by 11,000 square feet, to accommodate an expansion to the school. The 
property is located at 1100 West Grand River Avenue (Parcel Id No 33-02-02-23-476-
001) and is zoned RR, Rural Residential.

Attachments: 
1. Resolution for Approval of Special Use Permit #25-21, St. Martha School expansion
2. Proposed Site Plan



 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE                   Special Use Permit #25-21 
St. Martha Parish – 1100 Grand River 

Expansion of building greater than 25,000 sq. ft. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 6th day of 
November, 2025, at 6:30 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 The following resolution was offered by _______________ and supported by __________________ 
 

WHEREAS, St. Martha Parish, the applicant, has requested a special use permit (SUP) for the 
construction of a new classroom building at 1100 Grand River Avenue; and 

 
WHEREAS, the existing building is greater than 25,000 square feet and any change to a 

building of that size requires a new or modified Special Use Permit, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the SUP at its 

regular meeting on September 22, 2025 and reviewed the matter further at their October 13, 2025 
meeting, making a positive recommendation to the Township Board for approval of the modified 
SUP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board discussed the matter at their October 21, 2025 meeting and 

raised no major concerns; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the proposed new classroom building expansion is consistent with the intent 
and purpose of both the underlying RR zoning and the SUP requirements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the requested SUP is consistent with the 2023 Township Master Plan and Future 
Land Use Map, which designates the property as Institutional, and with the applicable land use 
policies within; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the building expansion is designed to be constructed and operated in harmony 
and appearace with the character of the general vicinity and will not change the essential character of 
the area; 
 
 WHEREAS, the project will not adversely effect the neighboring properties or uses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed expansion will not be financially detrimental to the surrounding 
properties or overall community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project is adequately served by public facilities and infrastructure and no 
undue burden will be placed on said facilities or infrastructure from the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property is served by the necessary sanitation facilities; and 



Resolution to Approve 
Special Use Permit #25-21 (St. Martha Parish School expansion) 
Page 2 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed classroom expansion will not create excessive traffic, noise, smoke, 
fumes, glare, odors, or other environmental factors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project will not have an adverse impact on the overall natural resources of the 
Townships.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby APPROVES SUP #25-21 to allow the construction of a new 
classroom building expansion to an existing building greater than 25,000 square feet at 1100 Grand 
River Avenue, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Approval is granted in general accordance with the proposed site plan as prepared by 

Virdis, as received by the Township on August 27, 2025. 
2. Any future changes to the SUP will require an amendment to SUP #25-21.  
3. SUP #25-21 will become void is construction related to the SUP has not commenced 

within 24 months of the effective date of the SUP, or if all construction related to the 
SUP is not completed within 36 month of the effective date of the SUP, unless an 
extension is granted.  

 
ADOPTED: YEAS:  

   
NAYS: 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 3rd 
day of April 2025. 
  
     
       ___________________________________   
       Angela Demas 
       Township Clerk 
 
 
 





Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

10.B

To: Board Members 

From: Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
Community Planning and Development Director 

Date: October 31, 2025 

Re: Special Use Permit #25-20 – Fedewa Builders – 4601 Dobie Road – Construct a 
group of buildings larger than 25,000 square feet 

Fedewa Holdings has requested special use permit approval to construction a series of four buildings, 
totaling greater than 25,000 square feet, at the vacant property at 4601 Dobie Road. The applicant is 
proposing the construction of four buildings, totaling 32 dwelling units, consistent with the 
conditions of the rezoning approved by the Board on March 27, 2025. To reiterate, the conditions 
voluntarily offered by the applicant and accepted by the Township were:  

1. Increase the rear yard building setback on the western boundary from the required 40 ft to
100 ft., more than doubling the required buffer between the project and neighboring single-
family homes.

2. Restrict the type of allowable unit to townhomes. A total of 4 buildings with 8 units per
building each with their own front door and garage accessible from the outside; and

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposal at its meeting on September 22, 2025 
and received substantial input against the project from the immediately adjacent neighbors on Seneca 
Drive and on the opposite side of Dobie Road from the project. The Planning Commission further 
discussed the matter at their October 13, 2025 meeting and voted 6-0 to approve the Special Use 
Permit to construct the four new buildings, totaling greater than 25,000 square feet. The Township 
Board initially discussed the request at their October 21, 2025 meeting. There was public input from 
the immediately adjacent neighbors in opposition and the Township Board had a series of questions 
that were discussed, including:  

• Drainage from this development to Seneca Drive and vice versa
• Light pollution from the project to the neighborhood
• The small wetland on the site
• The Faith Lutheran driveway that is being removed and relocated
• Traffic impacts and the study that was done for the project
• Location of dumpster for the project
• Height of the buildings proposed on the site
• The height of the buildings on surrounding properties: To recap, Arrowtree has a mix of 2 and 2 

½ stories (third story half buried) and the Chief Okemos Circle area has a mix of 2, 2 ½, and 3
story buildings. All buildings appear to meet the discrete maximum building height in the
ordinance of 35 feet.

Staff was asked to follow up on the traffic study with some further analysis, especially as it relates to the 
zero based assumptions, since there is nothing on the current property. To start with, the nearest 24 
hour traffic count from MDOT, on Dobie Road on 9/19/2023 was 8,894 vehicles. The peak hours were 

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30670/638938769351700000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30760/638956895414200000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/30806/638967466084130000


Vacant Dobie Road – Fedewa Holdings – Buildings Greater than 25,000 sq. ft. 
October 31, 2025 Page 2 

3:00PM to 6:00PM, peaking in the 5:00-6:00 hour with 872 vehicles. The traffic analysis then estimated 
the traffic at the site driveway, as shown: 

Southbound: 266AM peak/419PM peak 
Northbound: 352AM peak/474PM peak 

Table 1 of the traffic analysis shows the proposed trip generation for 32 dwelling units, which is: 

280 total trips, 33 in the AM peak, 34 in the PM peak 

The total trips include all traffic to the site over a 24 hour period. The AM and PM peak trips expected 
are roughly consistent with what we would predict, given that there are 32 dwelling units proposed on 
the site. This equates to approximately one trip every two minutes leaving the site in the AM and entering 
the site in the PM. Adding the traffic from the proposed project would not increase the traffic to an 
amount where the level of service would change and the level of service at the site driveway, under any 
construct scenario being considered, would be a C.   

As a reminder, Staff is providing the Special Use Permit criteria for direct review by the Board members. 
There are no additional review criteria under the Zoning Ordinance for the matter in question.  

Sec. 86-126 Review Criteria 
Applications for special use permits shall be reviewed for compliance with the following 
standards and requirements, where applicable. An application for a special use permit that 
complies with all the following standards and requirements in this chapter may be approved. 
The applicant shall assure that: 

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.
(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the

Township's comprehensive development plan of current adoption.
(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be

harmonious and appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character
of the general vicinity and that such a use will not change the essential character of
the same area.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses.
(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties 

or the community.
(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools,

stormwater drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or
that the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use
shall be able to provide any such service.

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-
site sanitation facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and stormwater
are proposed, they shall be properly designed and capable of handling the long term
needs of the proposed project.

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the
general welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes,
glare, or odors.

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the
natural resources of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural



Vacant Dobie Road – Fedewa Holdings – Buildings Greater than 25,000 sq. ft. 
October 31, 2025 Page 3 

soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, streams, major forests, wetlands, and 
wildlife areas. 

Township Board Options 
The Township Board may approve or deny the proposed special use permit for the group of buildings 
greater than 25,000 square feet, being proposed on Dobie Road, to the north of Faith Lutheran Church. 
Staff would offer the following motions for the Township Board’s use in discussing the matter. The 
Township Board should explicitly outline their reasons for approval or denial, based on the Special Use 
Permit standards outlined above.  

Motion for Approval 
Move to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #25-20, a request from 
Fedewa Holdings to construct four buildings at 4601 Dobie Road (Parcel Id No 33-02-02-
22-454-003) north of Faith Lutheran Church, subject to the following conditions: 
- Approval is granted in general accordance with the proposed site plan as prepared

by BRS Engineering, as received by the Township on August 22, 2025.
- Any future changes to the SUP will require an amendment to SUP #25020.
- All conditions for REZ #25001 shall continue to apply.
- SUP #25020 will become void if construction related to the SUP has not commenced 

within 24 months of the effective date of the SUP, or if all construction related to
the SUP is not completed within 36 month of the effective date of the SUP, unless an
extension is granted.

- No more than 32 dwelling units shall be permitted on the property
- A 100 foot building setback is required along the western property line of the parcel
- All buildings on the site shall be 2 ½ stories or less
- All buildings on the site shall be 35 feet tall or less
- No construction on the site shall begin until all approvals of the Ingham County Drain 

Commissioner and the Ingham County Road Department have been granted

For the following reasons: 

Motion for Denial 
Move to adopt the resolution denying Special Use Permit #25-20, a request from Fedewa 
Holdings to construct four buildings at 4601 Dobie Road (Parcel Id No 33-02-02-23-476-
001) north of Faith Lutheran Church, for the following reasons:

Attachments: 
1. Resolution for Approval of Special Use Permit #25-20, Fedewa Holdings, Dobie Road
2. Resolution for Denial of Special Use Permit #25-20, Fedewa Holdings, Dobie Road
3. Proposed Site Plan



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE     Special Use Permit #25-20 
Fedewa Builders – 4601 Dobie Road 

Group of buildings greater than 25,000 sq. ft. 

RESOLUTION 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 6th day of 
November, 2025, at 6:30 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by _______________ and supported by __________________ 

WHEREAS, Fedewa Holdings, the applicant, has requested a special use permit (SUP) for the 
construction four multiple-family buildings totaling over 25,000 square feet at 4601 Dobie Road; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the SUP at its 
regular meeting on September 22, 2025 and reviewed the matter further at their October 13, 2025 
meeting, making a positive recommendation to the Township Board for approval of the modified 
SUP; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board discussed the matter at their October 21, 2025, taking public 
comment and discussing a variety of topics surrounding the project; and 

WHEREAS, the requested SUP is consistent with the 2023 Township Master Plan and Future 
Land Use Map, which designates the majority of the property as Multiple Family Residential; and 

WHEREAS, the construction is designed to be built and operated in harmony and appearance 
with the character of the general vicinity and will not change the essential character of the area; 

WHEREAS, the project will not adversely effect the neighboring properties or uses; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed expansion will not be financially detrimental to the surrounding 
properties or overall community; and 

WHEREAS, the project is adequately served by public facilities and infrastructure and no 
undue burden will be placed on said facilities or infrastructure from the project; and 

WHEREAS, the property is served by the necessary sanitation facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the dwelling units will not create excessive traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, 
odors, or other environmental factors; and 

WHEREAS, the project will not have an adverse impact on the overall natural resources of the 
Townships.  



Resolution to Approve 
Special Use Permit #25-20 (4601 Dobie Road) 
Page 2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby APPROVES SUP #25-20 to allow the construction of four new 
multi family buildings totaling greater than 25,000 square feet, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Approval is granted in general accordance with the proposed site plan as prepared by 

BRS Engineering, as received by the Township on August 22, 2025. 
2. Any future changes to the SUP will require an amendment to SUP #25-20.  
3. All conditions for REZ #25001 shall continue to apply. 
4. SUP #25-20 will become void if construction related to the SUP has not commenced 

within 24 months of the effective date of the SUP, or if all construction related to the 
SUP is not completed within 36 month of the effective date of the SUP, unless an 
extension is granted. 

5. No more than 32 dwelling units shall be permitted on the property 
6. A 100-foot building setback is required along the western property line of the parcel 
7. All buildings on the site shall be 2 ½ stories or less 
8. All buildings on the site shall be 35 feet tall or less 
9. No construction on the site shall begin until all approvals of the Ingham County Drain 

Commissioner and the Ingham County Road Department have been granted 
  

 
ADOPTED: YEAS:  

   
NAYS: 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 6th 
day of November 2025. 
  
     
       ___________________________________   
       Angela Demas 
       Township Clerk 
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION TO DENY                   Special Use Permit #25-20 
Fedewa Builders – 4601 Dobie Road 

Group of buildings greater than 25,000 sq. ft. 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 6th day of 
November, 2025, at 6:30 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 The following resolution was offered by _______________ and supported by __________________ 
 

WHEREAS, Fedewa Holdings, the applicant, has requested a special use permit (SUP) for the 
construction four multiple-family buildings totaling over 25,000 square feet at 4601 Dobie Road; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the SUP at its 

regular meeting on September 22, 2025 and reviewed the matter further at their October 13, 2025 
meeting, making a positive recommendation to the Township Board for approval of the modified 
SUP; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board discussed the matter at their October 21, 2025, taking public 
comment and discussing a variety of topics surrounding the project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Board does not believe that the proposal is designed to be built and 
operated in harmony and appearance with the character of the general vicinity and will change the 
essential character of the area; 
 
 WHEREAS, the project will adversely affect the neighboring properties or uses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the dwelling units will create excessive traffic from the addition of dwelling units 
on Dobie Road; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project will have an adverse impact on the overall natural resources of the 
Townships.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby DENIES SUP #25-20 to allow the construction of four new multi 
family buildings totaling greater than 25,000 square feet, FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS: 

 
 
 
ADOPTED: YEAS:  

   
NAYS: 

 



Resolution to Deny 
Special Use Permit #25-20 (4601 Dobie Road) 
Page 2 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 

Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 6th 
day of November 2025. 
  
     
       ___________________________________   
       Angela Demas 
       Township Clerk 
 
 
 



BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Length Measurement
6'-10 3/4"

BSTOCKHILL
Text Box
2 for each dwelling unit, plus expansion capacity of 25%


BSTOCKHILL
Length Measurement
4'-6"

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Ellipse

BSTOCKHILL
Ellipse

BSTOCKHILL
Ellipse

BSTOCKHILL
Ellipse

BSTOCKHILL
Ellipse

BSTOCKHILL
Ellipse

BSTOCKHILL
Line

BSTOCKHILL
Line

BSTOCKHILL
Line

BSTOCKHILL
Arrow

BSTOCKHILL
Text Box
sign
bicycle park
landscape island
ICRC entrance
ICDC


BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Cloud

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle

BSTOCKHILL
Rectangle



 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

10.C 

To:  Township Board 

From:  Tim Dempsey, Township Manager 

Date:  October 31, 2025 

Re:  Third Quarter Budget Amendments 

 

The third quarter 2025 budget amendments are detailed in the attached document. These 
amendments result are due to revenue and expenditures that were unknown during the original 
budget process and line item corrections. 
 
GENERAL FUND  
Amendments to the 2025 General Fund include increased revenue from delinquent property taxes, 
permit fees, state reimbursements, interest earnings, and other fees. The two largest increases are 
building permits and the City of Lansing’s 425 Agreement. Increased building activity has led to 
another record year for building permits. The 425 Agreement covers the College Fields 
development and is due to an overall increase in taxable value in that area.  
 
Expenses cover higher than anticipated costs, unbudgeted items, and fund line adjustments. The 
website redesign costs will all occur in 2025 so those have been added. The Clerk’s Office is 
reducing budgeted overtime and also reducing temporary salaries and operational costs in the 
Elections fund. There are increases to overtime in the Police Department but corresponding 
reductions in the salary line item. Both Police and Fire Departments have proposed costs recovery 
expenditures that are detailed in the attachments. 
 
Overall, these amendments result in a net increase to fund balance of $266,209 and a projected 
increase to the year-end Fund Balance of $66,902. 
 
The projected Fund Balance for the General Fund is as follows: 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance on December 31, 2024 $12,653,260 
  

Original budgeted addition to Fund Balance 2025 40,254 
1ST quarter budget amendments  (264,422) 
2ND quarter budget amendments 24,861 
3RD  quarter budget amendments 266,209 
  
Projected increase to Fund Balance  $66,902                          

  
Projected Fund Balance on December 31, 2025 $12,720,162 
  
Fund Balance/Average Monthly Expenditures  5.6 

 



 
 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

10.C 

 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  
Amendments to the Special Revenue Funds include a series of revenue adjustments to reflect 
increased fee collections and better than anticipated interest earnings. There is also an increase in 
the sponsorship revenue in the Parks Fund. Most of the expense adjustments related to line item 
adjustments are relatively minor unbudgeted expenses. All of the Special Revenue Funds are 
seeing an increase to net fund balance with the exception of Law Enforcement Grants which has a 
small net decrease.  
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND  
Amendments to the Capital Projects Fund include additional revenue from late payment penalties 
and sidewalk program reimbursements. There are no adjustments to expense line items.  
 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Amendments to the Enterprise Funds are limited to the Water Fund. There have been higher than 
anticipated revenues in several line items for connection and related fees for various development 
projects. Increased expenses were limited to additional professional development for staff.  
 
The following motion is proposed to approve the budget amendments: 
 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE THIRD QUARTER 2025 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
WITH AN INCREASE IN BUDGETED FUND BALANCE FOR THE GENERAL FUND 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $266,209 WHICH PROJECTS AN INCREASE IN FUND 
BALANCE OF $66,902. BASED ON 2024 RESULTS, THE PROJECTED FUND 
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2025, WILL BE $12,720,162. 

 
Attachments: 
 

1. Third Quarter 2025 Budget Amendments 
2. Police and Fire Budget Amendment Request Forms – Cost Recovery Funds  

 



Page 1

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Trailer Park Collections 50                       200                -               Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-406.000

Delinquent Property Taxes 1,000                  5,000             2,138            Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-412.000

Tax Penalties 745                     15,000           16,000          Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-445.000

Tax Administration Fee 17,025                1,264,200      -               Higher than anticipated based on actual tax collection 101-000.000-447.000

Building Permits 140,000              600,000         50,000          Higher than expected building activity 101-000.000-476.000

Liquor License Application Fee 3,000                  -                 Unbudgeted 101-000.000-476.500

Mobile Food Vendor Permits 200                     1,000             Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-479.000

Liquor Tax Refund 2,917                  30,000           Higher than anticipated based on actual refunds 101-000.000-568.001

State Grants - Other 22,373                -                 Small Business Taxpayer Exemption  - unbudgeted 101-000.000-569.000

Local Revenue Sharing Agreements 60,562                615,000         425 Agreements, Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-582.000

Cemetery Revenue 3,200                  22,500           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-619.000

Rental Registration 6,400                  30,000           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-627.015

Vendor Fees 100                     200                Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-628.000

Police Desk Revenue 645                     1,000             Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-637.010

FOIA Requests - Copies 2,500                  3,500             Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-637.020

Cemetery Lot Sales 1,505                  20,000           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-643.000

Sponsor Revenue-Pancake Breakfast 1,495                  1,000             Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-647.120

Ordinance Fines 4,001                  23,710           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-657.000

Fines-UTC Enforcement 8,055                  50,000           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-657.010

False Alarm Fees 975                     4,000             Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-658.000

Court Restitution 1,625                  10,000           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-660.000

Interest 25,000                450,000         Earnings higher than anticipated 101-000.000-665.000

Miscellaneous 334                     2,000             Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-675.000

Reimbursements 39,720                30,000           Mason & Alaiedon permits higher than anticipated 101-000.000-676.000

Reimbursements-Fire 28,712                50,000           Higher than anticipated 101-000.000-676.030

Reimbursements-Insurance 12                       -                 Unbudgeted credit 101-000.000-676.040

Reimbursements-School Security 48,200                36,000           6,000            Higher than expected activity 101-000.000-676.300

420,351              

Third Quarter Budget Amendments 

2025 Budget 

Charter Township of Meridian 

General Fund 

Revenue 



Page 2

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Township Board
Communications 5,704                  8,000             -               Listening Sessions postcard mailings and printing 101-100.101-851.000

Administrative Services 
HSA Employer Contribution 630                     -                 -               Final HSA amount 101-170.173-715.030

Professional Services 775                     2,500             -               MAUI Membership Fee increase 101-170.173-821.000

Computer Services/Supplies 145                     -                 -               Expense moved to correct line item 101-170.173-826.000

Accounting 
Salaries - Temporary 1,300                  5,000             201,511        Temporary staffing required for 2025 financial 

operations 

101-170.191-701.080

Longevity 320                     -                 -               Unbudgeted expense 101-170.191-710.000

Health Insurance (2,625)                 61,911           -               Line item adjustment (715.010) 101-170.191-715.000

Insurance Opt Out 2,625                  -                 -               Line item adjustment (715.000) 101-170.191-715.010

Operating Supplies 4,000                  11,000           -               Utility bills production increased costs 101-170.191-728.000

Audit (10,282)               35,000           -               Lower than anticipated 101-170.191-807.000

Clerk 
Overtime (1,800)                 2,000             -               All overtime expenses in Elections OT moved to line 

item 170.262

101-170.215-706.000

Professional conferences/dues 1,000                  4,600             1,000            Additional training for new staff 101-170.215-825.000

Information Technology
Overtime 125                     -                 -               Unbudgeted 101-170.228-706.000

Assessing
Salaries- Temporary (3,896)                 11,520           -               Interns completed work tasks earlier than expected 101-170.243-701.080

Training 900                     1,000             -               Additional continuing education expenses 101-170.243-819.000

Professional Conferences/Dues 1,000                  3,300             -               Additional continuing education expenses 101-170.243-825.000

Treasurer 
Operating Supplies 150                     500                -               Increased delinquent tax payer filings 101-170.253-728.000

Professional Conferences/Dues 1,500                  4,000             -               Higher than anticipated 101-170.253-825.000

Miscellaneous 60                       500                -               Higher than anticipated 101-170.253-955.000

Expenditures 



Page 3

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Elections 
Salaries - temporary (16,000)               24,235           21,845          Utilized fewer temp employees, more OT costs with 

fulltime staff

101-170.262-701.080

Overtime 6,400                  297                -               Includes OT transfer from Clerk fund 170.215 101-170.262-706.000

Operating Supplies (13,000)               30,672           -               Original budget over estimated 101-170.262-728.000

Postage 11,000                2,000             -               Postage for special election postcards; increased 

absentee ballots

101-170.262-730.000

Mileage 10                       -                 -               Unbudgeted 101-170.262-870.000

Environmental program 
Climate Sustainability Program 25,000                -                 -               Design/engineering for Columbia/Lake St. 

bioswale/LRP project.

101-170.272.880-200

Police 
Salaries (15,975)               3,369,029      -               Reallocate for OT 101-300.301-701.000

Overtime 11,904                100,000         -               Scheduling demands 101-300.301-706.000

Overtime-Court Hearings 2,692                  15,000           -               Increased court appearances 101-300.301-706.010

Overtime-Training 1,379                  15,000           -               Increased training needs with new staff 101-300.301-706.060

Operating Costs - Spec Resp Team 8,700                  6,000             -               Cost Recovery (form attached) 101-300.301-728.300

* Uniforms 4,000                  28,000           -               Cost Recovery (form attached) 101-300.301-760.000

Contractual Services (500)                    7,200             -               Line item adjustment (820.035) 101-300.301-820.000

Towing Services 500                     2,500             -               Line item adjustment (820.000) 101-300.301-820.035

Machinery and Equipment 25,500                41,100           2,000            Cost Recovery (form attached) 101-300.301-979.000

Office Equipment & Furniture 10,000                22,000           -               Cost Recovery (form attached) 101-300.301-980.000

Fire 
Salaries-Acting Pay 3,667                  30,000           -               Increased need with staff changes 101-300.336-701.070

Uniforms 4,000                  16,000           -               Cost Recovery (form attached) 101-300.336-760.000

Contractual Services 6,132                  226,177         -               Prior fire dorm design expenses 101-300.336-820.000

Machinery and Equipment 10,500                15,000           -               Cost Recovery (form attached) 101-300.336-979.000

Recreation
HSA Employer Contribution 712                     1,100             -               Final HSA 101-750.754-715.030

Operating Supplies 120                     -                 -               Unplanned expense 101-750.754-728.000

Recreation Program Expenses (9,000)                 30,000           -               Reduced expenses 101-750.754-882.500

Basketball 381                     8,000             -               Increased expenses 101-750.754-882.801

Miscellaneous 9,000                  20,000           -               RecDesk & Card Connect charges 101-750.754-955.000



Page 4

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Parks Maintenance 
HSA Employer Contribution 1,404                  3,640             -               Final HSA 101-750.758-715.030

Pension 15,000                16,334           -               Underestimated 101-750.758-717.000

Associations and Authorities
Tri-County Regional Planning 254                     22,000           -               Actual invoiced dues above budgeted 101-750.800-825.020

Communications/Cable TV
Professional services 48,731                -                 -               Website redesign costs advanced to 2025 101-750.806-821.000

154,142              

Total general government 154,142              

Total capital outlay -                      

Total expenditures for General Fund 154,142              

Net to (from) fund balance 266,209              



Page 5

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Local Road Fund 

Reimbursements 20,100                -                 -               Unbudgeted repair reimbursements 204-000.000-676.000

Net to (from) fund balance 20,100                

Park Millage 

Delinquent property taxes 88                       250                429               Higher than anticipated revenue based on actual tax 

collection 

208-000.000-412.000

State Grants - Other 2,107                  -                 -               Small Business Taxpayer Exemption  - unbudgeted 208-000.000-569.000

Interest 13,800                35,000           25,000          Higher than anticipated 208-000.000-665.000

Rentals 7,500                  15,000           -               Higher than projected facility use 208-000.000-667.000

23,495                

Overtime Parks & Rec Admin 94                       400                -               Higher than anticipated 208-750.753-706.000

Overtime - Harris Nature Center 1,700                  3,500             -               Line item adjustment (758-706.000) 208-750.756-706.000

Overtime - Parks Maintenance (1,700)                 6,000             -               Line item adjustment (756-706.000) 208-750.758-706.001

94                       

Net to (from) fund balance 23,401                

Parks Restricted/Designated 

Grant Revenue - Local 3,000                  50,000           -               Red Cedar Water Trail project revenue 211-000.000-581.000

Sponsor revenue 13,951                50,000           24,816          Consolidated sponsorship revenue across multiple 

events 

211-000.000-647.050

Interest 911                     3,000             6,000            Higher than anticipated 211-000.000-665.000

Farmers Market 6,000                  20,000           -               Higher than anticipated 211-000.000-667.030

Market Vendor Revenue 3,500                  50,000           -               Higher than anticipated 211-000.000-667.035

Donations - native plant sale 263                     7,000             2,170            Higher than anticipated sales 211-000.000-674.101

Donations - Nancy Moore Park 625                     -                 -               Unbudgeted 211-000.000-674.220

28,250                

Special Revenue Funds 

Revenue 

Expenditures 

Revenue 

Revenue 

Expenditures 



Page 6

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Operating supplies - Summer Concerts 6,200                  -                 10,000          Realignment of expenses to newly created tracking 

accounts 

211-000.000-728.012

Operating supplies - Pride Event 396                     -                 2,055            Realignment of expenses to newly created tracking 

accounts 

211-000.000-728.013

6,596                  

Net to (from) fund balance 21,654                

Fire Restricted/Designated 

Interest 50                       5                    30                 Higher than anticipated 214-000.000-665.000

Donations 200                     -                 -               Unbudgeted donations 214-000.000-674.020

Heart Safe AED Program 4,870                  -                 -               Unbudgeted contribution 214-000.000-674.499

5,120                  

Heart Safe AED Program 339                     -                 -               Unbudgeted program expense 214-000.000-728.008

Net to (from) fund balance 4,781                  

Pedestrian Bike Path 

Delinquent property taxes 35                       350                -               Higher than anticipated revenue based on actual tax 

collection 

216-000.000-412.000

State Grants - Other 1,057                  -                 -               Small Business Taxpayer Exemption  - unbudgeted 216-000.000-569.000

Interest 14,900                75,000           -               Higher than anticipated 216-000.000-665.000

Reimbursements 12,986                -                 -               Fund allocation correction 216-000.000-676.000

Net to (from) fund balance 28,978                

Land Preservation Millage 

Delinquent property taxes 13                       100                3                   Higher than anticipated revenue based on actual tax 

collection 

217-000.000-412.000

State Grants - Other 320                     -                 -               Small Business Taxpayer Exemption  - unbudgeted 217-000.000-569.000

Interest 35,000                100,000         -               Higher than anticipated 217-000.000-665.000

35,333                

Expenditures 

Revenue 

Revenue 

Revenue 



Page 7

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Salaries - Temporary 6,000                  7,000             -               Line item adjustment (821.000) 217-000.000-701.080

Professional Services (6,000)                 66,000           -               Line item adjustment (701.080) 217-000.000-821.000

-                      

Net to (from) fund balance 35,333                

Land Preservation Reserve Fund

Interest 19,000                60,000           -               Higher than anticipated 218-000.000-665.000

Net to (from) fund balance 19,000                

Utilities-Electric/Gas/Water 350                     -                 -               Unbudgeted; adjustment to correct fund 218-000.000-920.000

Net to (from) fund balance 18,650                

Senior Center Millage 

State Grants - Other 266                     -                 -               Unbudgeted 223-000.000-569.000

Interest 6,000                  -                 -               Higher than anticipated 223-000.000-665.000

6,266                  

Operating supplies 14,581                -                 419               Line item adjustment (980.000) 223-000.000-728.000

Office equipment & furniture (15,000)               -                     -                   Line item adjustment (728.000) 223-000.000-980.000

(419)                    

Net to (from) fund balance 6,685                  

Cable TV Fund

Interest 1,500                  3,000             -               Higher than anticipated 230-000.000-665.000

Net to (from) fund balance 1,500                  

Police Restricted/Designated

Revenue 

Expenditures 

Revenue 

Expenditures 

Expenditures 

Revenue 



Page 8

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Interest 1,000                  500                -               Higher than anticipated 232-000.000-665.000

Donations - Police Designated 949                     1,000             -               Additional donations received 232-000.000-674.040

1,949                  

Operating Supplies 750                     -                 -               Line item adjustment for software cost 232-000.000-728.000

Operating Supplies - Police Restricted 1,000                  -                 -               Unbudgeted supplies 232-000.000-728.083

Police Training Fund PA 302 6,398                  7,000             -               Higher than anticipated, state funded training 232-000.000-956.040

MCOLES CPE 13,609                -                 -               State funded training 232-000.000-956.045

Police Designated Fund 1,000                  -                 -               Line item adjustment for supplies 232-000.000-956.090

22,757                

Net to (from) fund balance (20,808)               

Community Needs Fund 

Donations - HRC Emergency Services 3,172                  15,000           -               Higher than anticipated 272-000.000-674.060

Donations - Back To School 2,500                  2,500             -               Higher than anticipated 272-000.000-674.075

Donations - Holiday Baskets 12,000                2,000             -               Higher than anticipated 272-000.000-674.076

Donations - Fire 2,365                  -                 -               Unbudgeted 272-000.000-674.079

20,037                

Knob Hill Fire 1,250                  -                 -               Unbudgeted; remaining assistance 272-000.000-956.078

Fire Support 2,365                  -                 -               Unbudgeted; Arrowtree residents support 272-000.000-956.079

3,615                  

Net to (from) fund balance 16,422                

Law Enforcement Grants

Grant Revenue - Federal 3,256                  -                 -               Unbudgeted; grant funding 277-000.000-502.000

Interest 1,500                  1,500             -               Higher than anticipated 277-000.000-665.000

4,756                  

OT-OHSP Traffic Grant 5,959                  -                 -               Office of Highway Safety Planning traffic enforcement 277-300.301-706.310

Expenditures 

Revenue 

Expenditures 

Revenue 

Expenditures 

Revenue 



Page 9

 Description   Amount requested  
 Original 
Budget  

 1st & 2nd 
Quarter 

Amendments Explanation  General Ledger # 

Net to (from) fund balance (1,203)                 

Township Improvement Revolving Fund (TIRF) 

Penalties 556                     -                 -               Unbudgeted; special assessment late fees 446-000.000-474.000

Reimbursements 1,830                  -                 -               Unbudgeted; sidewalk program payments 446-000.000-676.000

Net to (from) fund balance 2,386                  

Water Fund 

Customer Installation 40,000                50,000           -               Higher than anticipated 591-000.000-633.000

Water Benefits 90,000                10,000           -               Higher than anticipated 591-000.000-634.000

Miscellaneous 10,000                25,000           15,000          Higher than anticipated 591-000.000-675.000

Misc-Construction Meters 3,000                  10,000           -               Higher than anticipated 591-000.000-675.002

Reimbursements 40,000                500                202,000        Higher than anticipated 591-000.000-676.000

Reimbursement - Utility Damage 15,000                -                 -               New account for repair expenses for other utilities 

damage

591-000.000-676.080

198,000              

Professional Conferences/Dues 5,000                  30,000           -               Higher than anticipated participation in professional 

development

591-440.441-825.000

Engineering - Shoes and Boots 88                       -                 -               Reimbursement per CBA 591-440.447-764.000

Contractual Services - Utility Damage 1,000                  -                 -               New account for repair expenses for other utilities 

damage

591-440.537-820.080

6,088                  

Net to (from) fund balance 191,912              

Revenue 

Capital Projects Funds 

Enterprise Funds 

Revenue 

Expenditures 















 

 

 

 

 

To: Township Board 
 

From: Abigail Tithof, Human Resources Director 
  
 Date: November 6, 2025 

Re: Public Act 152 Annual Healthcare Exemption Option 

10.D 

 
 

As a follow up to the Township budget discussion held by the Township Board on October 7, 2025, 

the Board needs to take action on waiving the hard cap restrictions under Public Act 152.  We have 

been working closely with Gallagher, the Township’s benefits administrator, to find the best options 

available that will help manage increasing healthcare costs. As with every benefits renewal year, we 

sought solutions designed to address our total cost of care while focusing on the whole health of our 

employees.  

The required adjustment to the Township budget for the purpose of covering additional costs for 

healthcare coverage in 2026 will be made in a future budget amendment.  

In order to proceed with plan renewal, the attached resolution should be adopted: 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION 

OPTION (SECTION 8) AS SET FORTH IN 2011 PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY 

FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT. 

Attachment: 

1.  November 6, 2025   PA152 Exemption Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 6, 2025 
Employee Benefits PA152 Exemption 

 
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION OPTION AS SET FORTH IN 2011 

PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT 
 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham 
County, Michigan, held at 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 on the 12th day of November 2024, at 
6:00 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT:   

 

 
ABSENT: 

 
The following resolution was offered by  and supported by  . 

 
WHEREAS, 2011 Public Act 152 (the “Act”) was passed by the State Legislature and signed 
by the Governor on September 24, 2011; 

 
WHEREAS, the Act contains three options for complying with the requirements of the Act; 

 
WHEREAS, the three options are as follows: 

 
1) Section 3 - “Hard Caps” Option - limits a public employer’s total annual health care 

costs for employees based on coverage levels, as defined in the Act; 
2) Section 4 - “80%/20%” Option - limits a public employer’s share of total annual 

health care costs to not more than 80%. This option requires an annual majority vote 
of the governing body; 

3) Section 8 - “Exemption” Option - a local unit of government, as defined in the Act, 
may exempt itself from the requirements of the Act by an annual 2/3 vote of the 
governing body; 

 
WHEREAS, Meridian Charter Township has decided to adopt the annual Exemption option 
as its choice of compliance under the Act; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Meridian Charter Township elects to comply 
with the requirements of 2011 Public Act 152, the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution 
Act, by adopting the annual Exemption option for the medical benefit plan coverage year January 1, 
2025 through December 31, 2025. 

ADOPTED: YEAS:   

 

 
NAYS: 



Resolution to Approve 
Employee Benefits PA152 Exemption 

Page 2 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 
) ss 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board of the Charter 
Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and a 
complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board on the 6th day of 
November, 2025. 

 
 

  

Angela Demas 
Township Clerk 



 
 
 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Board Members 

From: Scott Hendrickson, Township Supervisor 

Date: November 1, 2025 

Re: 2025 Township Manager Performance Review  

11. A 

 
 

 
At our last meeting, the Board was presented with the Manager evaluation forms from those staff 

members who participated in this year’s staff review of the Township Manager as well as a blank 

evaluation form to use to complete their evaluation. Board Members were asked to complete their 

reviews and send them to Supervisor Hendrickson and Director Tithof, as prescribed under the 

Township Manager Review Policy by November 1st.  

 

Under the policy, it is the Supervisor’s role to compile the unaltered reviews and draft an executive 

summary, and to place this item on for discussion at our first meeting in November, which in this 

case is November 6th.  

 

Please find the executive summary and full review materials below for our discussion. Once this 

matter has been discussed, if there are any changes that the Board wishes to make, they will be 

implemented and placed on the agenda for action at our second meeting in November.  

 
 

NOTE: THERE IS NO REQUIRED ACTION AT THIS MEETING AS THIS IS FOR DISCUSSION ONLY. 

 
Attachments: 

 
1. Executive Summary Review of Manager Timothy Dempsey 
2. Township Manager Review Forms from Board Members 
3. Township Manager Review Forms from Employees/Boards and Commission Members 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Executive Summary 

Review of Manager Timothy Dempsey 

Tim Dempsey was appointed to be our new Township Manager in January of 2025 and 
has served in that capacity throughout the entirety of 2025 since that date. His tenure at 
Meridian Township follows a lengthy interim Township Manager appointment as the 
Board deliberatively considered how to move forward after the departure of our long-
time Township Manager.  
 
2025 also brought with it considerable turnover on the Township Board, including the 
election in 2024 of our new Township Clerk, Angela Demas, and our new Township 
Trustee, Nickolas Lentz, and the appointment of our new Township Treasurer Linda 
Burghardt after the retirement of Treasurer Phil Deschaine.  
 
It would be natural to expect that these major transitions would be a significant 
challenge to any new Manager, given the new collective personality of the Board and the 
vastness of the responsibility that the Township Manager faces, and a throughline that 
emerged in the comments from those who evaluated him credited Tim with a calm and 
careful demeanor that led to a smooth transitionary period.  
 
2025 has also been a very successful year, despite the initial challenges. We have yet 
another clean audit of our financial state. We passed another balanced budget, despite 
rising costs across all categories. We have engaged the community with listening 
sessions, put on first-class events and programming, provided amazing service to our 
residents, and upgraded and improved upon our infrastructure in meaningful, yet 
fiscally responsible, ways.  
 
The utility billing project, in particular, stands out as a seemingly insurmountable task at 
the end of 2024, and has now been nearly fully completed with minimal concern or 
fanfare. Staff transitions have been handled well and we have ambitious and forward-
thinking goals that we have put in place for the community for 2026. None of these 
things would be possible without good leadership at the top of the organization and Tim 
has been able to adroitly provide that to Meridian Township. 
 
Many of those who were surveyed indicated that his quick rapport with the Township 
Staff and steady hand on the rudder was of great value to the organization. The 
Township Manager must be an excellent coalition builder and have exemplary 
managerial skills and it is the Board’s estimation that he does. 
 
It is reflective of Tim’s success as Township Manager that many Board Members could 
not find an area of critical improvement to offer in their reviews. For those who did, the 



 
 
 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

theme was to continue to find additional ways to communicate with the Board, the staff, 
and the public.  
 
The constructive advice that Board Members offered to Tim as a part of their evaluations 
was nearly exclusively asking that he be a more vocal participant at Board Meetings, 
events, and more. We know and acknowledge that he is a subject matter expert and 
brings a deep knowledge to the table in many areas, and would like to hear from him 
more, as his opinions come with the weight of decades of experience and we collectively 
value and benefit from them.  
 
Overall, the ratings and comments from the Board and members of the Township Staff, 
and our Boards and Commissions show the high-quality work that Tim was able to 
accomplish even during a very challenging first year getting to know the organization, 
Board and community. 
 
We therefore offer an exemplary review of Manager Tim Dempsey’s performance over 
the course of 2025 and look forward to his successes in 2026, as they will be successes 
for all of us as well. 
  
 
 
 
Scott Hendrickson 
Meridian Township Supervisor  















2025 Township Manager Performance Evaluation 
Timothy Dempsey (rating period 1/27/25-10/7/25) 

Hello!  Your name was selected randomly as part of the Township Manager’s evaluation 
process, and you are invited to complete this form and rate Manager Dempsey’s 
performance since his arrival in January 2025.  You have the option of participating 
anonymously and may leave the name and signature line blank if you wish.  Completed 
evaluations must be turned in to Abigail Tithof (HR) no later than Tuesday, October 7th.   
Evaluations received after that date will not be included in this process.  Thank you for 
your participation. 

Date Evaluation Completed: 

Evaluator Name & Signature (Optional): 

INSTRUCTIONS 
This evaluation form contains ten categories of evaluation criteria. Each category contains a 
statement to describe a behavior standard in that category. For each statement, use 
the following scale to indicate your rating of the Manager’s performance.  

5 = Excellent (almost always exceeds the performance standard) 
4 = Above average (generally exceeds the performance standard) 
3 = Average (generally meets the performance standard) 
2 = Below average (usually does not meet the performance standard) 
1 = Poor (rarely meets the performance standard) 
N = Not Applicable/Not Sure/Don’t Know 

IMPORTANT NOTE: Any item left blank will be interpreted as a score of “3 = Average”. 

This evaluation form also contains a provision for entering narrative comments, including 
an opportunity to enter responses to specific questions and an opportunity to list any 
comments you believe appropriate and pertinent to the rating period. 

 Leave all pages of this evaluation form attached.
 Initial each page unless you are choosing to complete the form anonymously.
 Sign and date this cover page in the space provided (above).

All evaluations presented prior to the deadline identified on this cover page will be 
summarized into a performance evaluation.  The resulting information will be presented 
by the Township Board to the Township Manager as part of the agenda for the meeting 
dated October 21, 2025. 



This page intentionally left blank 



Page 3 of 6 Initials (Optional) 

PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES 

1. INDIVIDUAL CHARACTERISTICS

Diligent and thorough in the discharge of duties, “self-starter”

Exercises good judgment consistently

Displays enthusiasm, cooperation, and adaptability

Mental and physical stamina appropriate for the position

Exhibits composure, appearance and attitude appropriate for the position

2. PROFESSIONAL SKILLS AND STATUS
Maintains knowledge of current developments affecting the practice of local government

management

Demonstrates a capacity for innovation and creativity

Anticipates and analyzes problems to develop effective approaches for solving them

Willing to try new ideas proposed by governing body members and/or staff

Sets a professional example by handling affairs of the public office in a fair and impartial manner

3. WORKING WITH ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY
Carries out directives of the body as a whole as opposed to those of any one member or group

Sets meeting agendas that reflect the guidance of the governing body and avoids unnecessary

involvement in administrative actions

Disseminates complete and accurate information equally to all members in a timely manner

Assists by facilitating decision making without usurping authority

Responds well to requests, advice, and constructive criticism

4. POLICY EXECUTION

Implements governing body actions in accordance with the intent of the Township Board

Supports the actions of the governing body after a decision has been reached, both inside and outside

the organization

Understands, supports, and enforces local government’s laws, policies, and ordinances

Reviews ordinance and policy procedures periodically to suggest improvements to their

effectiveness

Offers workable alternatives to the governing body for changes in law or policy when an existing

policy or ordinance is no longer practical



Page 4 of 6 Initials (Optional) 

5. REPORTING
Provides regular information and reports to the governing body concerning matters of

importance to the local government, using the Township Charter as guide

Responds in a timely manner to requests from the governing body for special reports

Takes the initiative to provide information, advice, and recommendations to the governing

body on matters that are non-routine and not administrative in nature

Reports produced by the manager are accurate, comprehensive, concise and written to their

intended audience

Produces and handles reports in a way to convey the message that affairs of the organization are

open to public scrutiny

6. CITIZEN RELATIONS
Responsive to requests from citizens

Demonstrates a dedication to service to the community and its citizens

Maintains a nonpartisan approach in dealing with the news media

Meets with and listens to members of the community to discuss their concerns and strives

to understand their interests

Gives an appropriate effort to maintain citizen satisfaction with Township services

7. STAFFING

Recruits and retains competent personnel for staff positions

Applies an appropriate level of supervision to improve any areas of substandard performance

Stays accurately informed and appropriately concerned about employee relations

Professionally manages the compensation and benefits plan

Promotes training and development opportunities for employees at all levels of the organization

8. SUPERVISION

Encourages department heads to make decisions within their jurisdictions with minimal

Township manager involvement, yet maintains general control of operations by providing

the right amount of communication to the staff

Instills confidence and promotes initiative in subordinates through supportive rather than

restrictive controls for their programs while still monitoring operations at the department level

Develops and maintains a friendly and informal relationship with the staff and work force in

general, yet maintains the professional dignity of the Township Manager’s office

Sustains or improves staff performance by evaluating the performance of staff members at least 

annually, setting goals and objectives for them, periodically assessing their progress, and

providing appropriate feedback

Encourages teamwork, innovation, and effective problem-solving among the staff members



Page 5 of 6 Initials (Optional) 

9. FISCAL MANAGEMENT
Prepares a balanced budget to provide services at a level directed by the Township Board

Makes the best possible use of available funds, conscious of the need to operate the local

government efficiently and effectively

Prepares a budget and budgetary recommendations in an intelligent and accessible format

Ensures actions and decisions reflect an appropriate level of responsibility for financial

planning and accountability

Appropriately monitors and manages fiscal activities of the organization

10. COMMUNITY

Shares responsibility for addressing the difficult issues facing the Township

Avoids unnecessary controversy

Cooperates with neighboring communities and the county

Helps the council address future needs and develop adequate plans to address long term trends

Cooperates with other regional, state and federal government agencies

NARRATIVE EVALUATION 

a. What would you identify as the manager’s strengths, expressed in terms of results achieved
during the rating period?

b. What performance areas would you identify as most critical for improvement?



Page 6 of 6 Initials (Optional) 

c. What constructive suggestions or assistance can you offer the manager to enhance
performance?

d. What other comments do you have for the manager, including priorities, expectations, goals or
objectives for the new rating period?

This concludes your evaluation of the Township Manager 
Thank you for participating! 

*For Human Resources Use Only* 
Pts #/5 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 










































































	Agenda
	9A-Communications
	9B-Minutes
	9C-Bills
	9D-2026 Board Meeting Schedule
	9E-Third Quarter Investment Report
	9F-Brightline IT-HPE Care Contract
	9G-Brightline IT-Palo Alto Care Contract
	9H-Brightline IT-QuickHelp & Keeper Contract
	9I-GoTo Technologies USA Contract
	10A-SUP St. Martha Parish and School
	10B-SUP 4601 Dobie Road
	10C-Third Quarter Budget Amendments
	10D-PA152 Annual Healthcare Exemption Option
	11A-Township Manager Review Process.pdf
	Township Manager Performance Evaluation_2025 - NL report.pdf
	INSTRUCTIONS
	PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES
	2. PROFESSIONAL SKILLS AND STATUS
	3. WORKING WITH ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY
	4. POLICY EXECUTION
	5. REPORTING
	6. CITIZEN RELATIONS
	7. STAFFING
	8. SUPERVISION
	9. FISCAL MANAGEMENT
	10. COMMUNITY



	Date Evaluation Completed: 10.23.25
	Diligent and thorough in the discharge of duties selfstarter: 5
	Exercises good judgment consistently: 5
	Displays enthusiasm cooperation and adaptability: 5
	Mental and physical stamina appropriate for the position: 5
	Exhibits composure appearance and attitude appropriate for the position: 5
	Maintains knowledge of current developments affecting the practice of local government: 5
	Demonstrates a capacity for innovation and creativity: 5
	Anticipates and analyzes problems to develop effective approaches for solving them: 5
	Willing to try new ideas proposed by governing body members andor staff: 5
	Sets a professional example by handling affairs of the public office in a fair and impartial manner: 5
	Carries out directives of the body as a whole as opposed to those of any one member or group: 5
	Sets meeting agendas that reflect the guidance of the governing body and avoids unnecessary: 5
	Disseminates complete and accurate information equally to all members in a timely manner: 5
	Assists by facilitating decision making without usurping authority: 5
	Responds well to requests advice and constructive criticism: 5
	Implements governing body actions in accordance with the intent of the Township Board: 5
	Supports the actions of the governing body after a decision has been reached both inside and outside: 5
	Understands supports and enforces local governments laws policies and ordinances: 5
	Reviews ordinance and policy procedures periodically to suggest improvements to their: 5
	Offers workable alternatives to the governing body for changes in law or policy when an existing: 5
	Initials Optional: 
	Provides regular information and reports to the governing body concerning matters of: 5
	Responds in a timely manner to requests from the governing body for special reports: 5
	Takes the initiative to provide information advice and recommendations to the governing: 5
	Reports produced by the manager are accurate comprehensive concise and written to their: 5
	Produces and handles reports in a way to convey the message that affairs of the organization are: 5
	Responsive to requests from citizens: 5
	Demonstrates a dedication to service to the community and its citizens: 5
	Maintains a nonpartisan approach in dealing with the news media: 5
	Meets with and listens to members of the community to discuss their concerns and strives: 5
	Gives an appropriate effort to maintain citizen satisfaction with Township services: 5
	Recruits and retains competent personnel for staff positions: N
	Applies an appropriate level of supervision to improve any areas of substandard performance: N
	Stays accurately informed and appropriately concerned about employee relations: N
	Professionally manages the compensation and benefits plan: N
	Promotes training and development opportunities for employees at all levels of the organization: N
	Encourages department heads to make decisions within their jurisdictions with minimal: N
	Instills confidence and promotes initiative in subordinates through supportive rather than: N
	Develops and maintains a friendly and informal relationship with the staff and work force in: N
	Sustains or improves staff performance by evaluating the performance of staff members at least: N
	Encourages teamwork innovation and effective problemsolving among the staff members: N
	Initials Optional_2: 
	Prepares a balanced budget to provide services at a level directed by the Township Board: 5
	Makes the best possible use of available funds conscious of the need to operate the local: 5
	Prepares a budget and budgetary recommendations in an intelligent and accessible format: 5
	Ensures actions and decisions reflect an appropriate level of responsibility for financial: 5
	Appropriately monitors and manages fiscal activities of the organization: 5
	Shares responsibility for addressing the difficult issues facing the Township: 5
	Avoids unnecessary controversy: 5
	Cooperates with neighboring communities and the county: 5
	Helps the council address future needs and develop adequate plans to address long term trends: 5
	Cooperates with other regional state and federal government agencies: 5
	Initials Optional_3: 
	Manager Strengths: I appreciate Manager Dempsey's careful nature in telling others when he needs to learn more information before stating an opinion or something as a fact, it shows great care for being a source of information and respect in the Twp. 
 
Additionally, his knowledge about how local government works means that there was not a period where Meridian was without an effective manager. He jumped in with curiosity, knowledge, and a desire to work in systems that have been successful before he joined the team.
	Critical Improvement: Nothing comes to mind based on my interactions with him. 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 
	10Row1: 
	Initials Optional_4: 
	Constructive Suggestions: It is clear that your opinions come from a place of deep knowledge and hearing more of your thoughts based on your tenure in local government would be appreciated from time to time. I also understand why that might not be something he wants to do, based on his position. 
	Comments: I am looking forward to seeing how a steady hand can benefit the economic development in Meridian, considering how visible those projects are in the community. 


